
 

 

Regular Council Meeting 

April 14, 2025 

Executive Summary 
 

Item # Summary 

9A-B Description: Items for Action by Unanimous Consent 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the consent agenda 
as presented. 
 

10A Description: Purchase of Security Doors 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the purchase and 
installation of four doors by Discount Lock and Door Installation 
in the amount of $5,250. 
 

10B Description: Purchase of Replacement Bulbs from Trojan for the 
UV System 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the proposal from 
Trojan to purchase new bulbs for the wastewater UV system in 
the amount of $9,602.88. 

10C Description: Repairs to Fuel Island System 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve Rohr Gasoline 
Equipment Company to make repairs to fuel island not to 
exceed $14,805.05. 



 

Item # Summary 

10D Description: Filter Media Automatic Flushing System 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the proposal from 
Integrated Controls for the purchase and installation of three 
Signet Insertion flow meters on wells 1, 3, & 4 for $18,769.61. 

10E Description: Root Control 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve a 2025 Root Control 
for approximately 10,428 ft of sanitary sewer main lines from 
Perceptive Services and Operations in the amount of $28,677. 
 

10F Description: Purchase of Approved Pump from Detroit Pump 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve quote from Detroit 
Pump for the purchase of an aluminum sulfate heater/pump 
skid in the amount of $31,685. 

10G Description: West Woodlawn Asphalt Patching 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the milling and 
patching of West Woodlawn Avenue from Lakeland Asphalt for 
$49,900. 

10H Description: WWTP Truck Purchase #40 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the purchase from 
Fox Ford for a 2024 Ford F20 4x4 crew cab pickup, and upfit of 
vehicle from Truck and Trailer Specialties in the total amount of 
$56,589. 



 

Item # Summary 

10I Description: Downtown Business Team Rock the Block Street 
Dance Request 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve, under the direction 
of staff, the request from the Downtown Business Team (DBT) 
to conduct three (3) separate Block Party-Street Dances from 
6:00 PM until 10:00 PM on Saturday, May 10, 2025, Saturday, 
July 12, 2025, and Saturday, August 9, 2025, and consent to 
street closures on the respective dates. 

10J Description: Resolution 2025-10 Notice of Intent to Issue Bonds 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve Resolution 2025-10 
Notice of Intent to Issue Bonds. 

10K Description: Resolution 2025-11 to Appoint Rob Neil as Street 
Administrator 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-11 to 
designate Rob Neil, Street Superintendent, as the City of 
Hastings Street Administrator. 

10L Description: Action to Merge Divisions HC into Division HB of 
the MERS Hybrid Plan 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to authorize the merger of 
Division HC into Division HB of the City of Hastings MERS Hybrid 
plan. 



 

Item # Summary 

10M Description: Very Berry Family Event 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve, under direction of 
staff, the 14th annual Very Berry Family Event to be held in 
Tyden Park on Saturday, June 7, 2025 from 9:00 AM until 
Noon. The request includes the use of the entire park and both 
pavilions. 

10N Description: Bachman Field Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
and Final Site Plan Review Public Hearing 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to schedule a public hearing on 
Monday, May 12, 2025 for approval of the Bachman Field 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) and final site plan approval. 

10O 
 

Description: Amendment to Contract with Mercy Ambulance 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to authorize an amendment to 
the contract with Mercy Ambulance to pay $7,792 monthly for 
ambulance services effective May 2025 through the end of the 
contract term. 

10P Description: McGrath Consulting Agreement 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to accept the proposal from 
McGrath Consulting to perform an assessment of emergency 
medical services in an amount not to exceed $30,540. 

10Q Description: Set Hearing of Necessity for Parking Lot Special 
Assessment District (SAD) 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to set a public hearing on April 
28, 2025 to determine the necessity of a special assessment 
district for downtown parking areas. 

 



Council Agenda  Page 1 of 3 April 14, 2025 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

  

 
City Council Agenda 

April 14, 2025 
 
 

1. Regular meeting called to order at 7:00 PM 

2. Roll call 

3. Pledge to the flag 

*         4. Approval of the agenda 

*         5. Approval of the minutes of the March 24, 2025, regular meeting 

A. Approval of the minutes of the March 24, 2025, closed session meeting. 
 

√        6. Public Hearings: (None) 

7. Public Comment: 

8. Formal Recognitions and Presentations: 

A. Mayor Tossava Proclamation and Presentation to Bill Mattson, representing the 
Family Support Center, for Child Abuse Prevention Month. 

B. Presentation from Dave Hatfield, Barry County Commissioner. 

C. Presentation from Fire Chief Mark Jordan for Fire Department Annual Report. 

D. Presentation from Moore & Bruggink for update on the Green and Market Street 
Project. 

√        9. Items for Action by Unanimous Consent:  

*                   A. Motion to schedule the Budget Workshop for Monday, April 28 at 6:00 PM. 

*                   B. Receive and place on file five (5) invoices totaling $122,975 as detailed in 
attachments.  

√        10. Items of Business: 

*                   A. Motion to approve the purchase and installation of four doors by Discount Lock 
and Door in the amount of $5,250.  

*                   B. Motion to approve the proposal from Trojan to purchase new bulbs for the 
wastewater UV system in the amount of $9,602.88. 

*                   C. Motion to approve Rohr Gasoline Equipment Company to make repairs to fuel 
island not to exceed $14,805.05. 



Council Agenda  Page 2 of 3 April 14, 2025 

*                   D. Motion to approve the proposal from Integrated Controls for the purchase and 
installation of three Signet Insertion flow meters on wells 1, 3 & 4 for 
$18,769.61. 

*                   E. Motion to approve root control for approximately 10,428 ft of sanitary sewer 
main lines from Perceptive Services and Operations in the amount of $28,677.  

*                   F. Motion to approve quote from Detroit Pump for the purchase of an aluminum 
sulfate heater/pump skid in the amount of $31,685. 

*                   G. Motion to approve the milling and patching of West Woodlawn Avenue from 
Lakeland Asphalt for $49,900. 

*                   H. Motion to approve the purchase from Fox Ford for a 2024 Ford F250 4x4 crew 
cab pickup, and upfit of vehicle from Truck and Trailer Specialties in the total 
amount of $56,589. 

*                   I. Motion to approve, under the direction of staff, the request from the Downtown 
Business Team (DBT) to conduct three (3) separate Block Party-Street Dances 
from 6:00 PM until 10:00 PM on Saturday May 10, 2025, Saturday July 12, 
2025, and Saturday August 9, 2025, and consent to street closures on the 
respective dates. 

*                   J. Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-10, Notice of Intent to Issue Bonds. 

*                   K. Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-11 to designate Rob Neil, Street 
Superintendent, as the City of Hastings Street Administrator. 

*                   L. Motion to authorize the merger of Division HC into Division HB of the City of 
Hastings MERS Hybrid plan. 

*                   M. Motion to approve, under the direction of staff, the 14th annual Very Barry Family 
Event to be held in Tyden Park on Saturday, June 7, 2025 from 9:00 AM 
until Noon. The request includes the use of the entire park and both pavilions. 

*                   N. Motion to schedule Bachman Field Planned Unit Development (PUD) and Final 
Site Plan Review Public Hearing on Monday, May 12, 2025 at 7:00 PM. 

*                   O. Motion to authorize an amendment to the contract with Mercy Ambulance to pay 
$7,792 monthly for ambulance services effective May 2025 through the end of 
the contract term. 

*                   P. Motion to accept the proposal from McGrath Consulting to perform an 
assessment of emergency medical services in an amount not to exceed 
$30,540. 

*                   Q. Motion to set a public hearing on April 28, 2025 to determine the necessity of a 
special assessment district for downtown parking areas. 

 

 

 



Council Agenda  Page 3 of 3 April 14, 2025 

11. Staff Presentations and Policy Discussions: 

12. City Manager Report: 

*                   A. Fire Chief Jordan Monthly Report 
*                   B. Library Director Edelman Monthly Report 

√        13. Reports and Communications: 

*                   A. YMCA Updates for the City of Hastings – March 19, 2025 
*                   B. Hastings Public Library Board of Trustees DRAFT Minutes – March 31, 2025 
 

14. Public Comment: 

15. Mayor and Council comment: 

16. Adjourn 

 
 
* Items with enclosures. 
√ Motion under agenda heading requires roll call vote. 
 
 
 
 
 

Guidelines for Public Comment 
 

Public Comment is welcomed and appreciated. Please follow these simple guidelines to ensure all have 
an opportunity to be heard. 
 
All comments and questions will be made through the chair. All comments will be made in a courteous 
and civil manner; profanity and personal attacks will not be tolerated. Please limit the length of your 
comments to 3 minutes. If you are a member of a group, please appoint a spokesperson to speak on 
behalf of the group (those speaking on behalf of a group may be provided additional time). Please 
state your name before offering comment. 



4531 
 

Council Minutes  March 24, 2025 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

  

 
City Council Minutes 

March 24, 2025 
 
 

1. Regular meeting called to order at 7:00 PM 

2. Roll call 

Councilmembers Present: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, 
Stenzelbarton and Tossava 
 
City Staff and Appointees Present: Moyer-Cale, Boulter, Jordan, King, Neil, Perin 

 
3. Pledge to the flag 

4. Approval of the agenda 

Remove Item of Business 10J, and add items 10L and 10M. 
 
Motion by Rocha, with support from Brehm, to approve the agenda as presented and 
amended. 
 
All ayes. Motion carried. 

 
5. Approval of the minutes of the March 10, 2025, regular meeting 

Correction on item 11C, 3rd paragraph, should read as “direction of staff”. 
 
Motion by Brehm, with support from Nesbitt, to approve the minutes of the March 10, 
2025 regular meeting, as corrected. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
6. Public Hearings: (None) 

7. Public Comment: 

Comments from Sam Cale, representative of RankMiVote.org, about hosting a town hall 
at the Hastings Public Library conference room on April 16, 2025 at 5:30 PM to discuss 
current voting system. 
 
 
 



4532 
 

Council Minutes  March 24, 2025 

8. Formal Recognitions and Presentations: 

A. Presentation from Dave Hatfield, Barry County Commissioner (Absent) 
 

9. Items for Action by Unanimous Consent: 

A. Receive and place on file eight (8) invoices totaling $118,165.80. 
 

Motion by Stenzelbarton, with support from Devroy, to receive and place on file 
eight (8) invoices totaling $118,165.80. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
B. Consider acceptance, with regret, the resignation of Bill Nesbitt from the Hastings 

City Council. 
 

Motion by Stenzelbarton, with support from Brehm to accept, with regret, the 
resignation of Bill Nesbitt from the Hastings City Council. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
10. Items of Business: 

A. Conduct second reading and adoption of Ordinance 627, amending the Woodlawn 
Meadows Planned Unit Development (PUD). 

 
Motion by Resseguie, with support from Nesbitt, to adopt Ordinance 627, 
amending the Woodlawn Meadows Planned Unit Development (PUD). 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 
 

B. Conduct second reading and adoption of Ordinance 628, establishing purchase 
procedures as presented. 

 
Motion by McLean, with support from Barlow, to adopt Ordinance 628, establishing 
purchase procedures as presented. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 



4533 
 

Council Minutes  March 24, 2025 

C. Conduct second reading and adoption of Ordinance 629, amending Section 90-883 
(b)(4) increasing the maximum driveway width at the property line from 20 feet to 
24 feet. 

 
Motion by McLean, with support from Devroy, to adopt Ordinance 629, amending 
Section 90-883 (b)(4) increasing the maximum driveway width at the property line 
from 20 feet to 24 feet. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
D. Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-08 to recognize Hastings Jingle & Mingle as a 

nonprofit operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable 
gaming license. 

 
Motion by Resseguie, with support from McLean, to adopt Resolution 2025-08 to 
recognize Hastings Jingle & Mingle as a nonprofit operating in the community for the 
purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license. 
 
Discussion was held. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
E. Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-05 to accept N. Jackson St, S. Hayes St, N. Kelly 

Ave, and N. Jefferson Street into the municipal street system. 
 

Motion by Barlow, with support from Nesbitt, to adopt Resolution 2025-05 to 
accept N. Jackson St, S. Hayes St, N. Kelly Ave, and N. Jefferson Street into the 
municipal street system. 
 
Discussion was held. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
F. Motion to approve, under direction of staff, the Hastings Downtown Business Team 

request to hold Spring “Girls Night Out” event on Thursday, May 1, 2025, from 5:00 
PM until 8:00 PM, and adopt Resolution 2025-06, staying the necessary 
ordinances. 

 
Motion by McLean, with support from Brehm, to approve, under direction of staff, 
Hastings Downtown Business Team request to hold Spring “Girls Night Out” event on 
Thursday, May 1, 2025, from 5:00 PM until 8:00 PM, and adopt Resolution 2025-



4534 
 

Council Minutes  March 24, 2025 

06, staying the necessary ordinances. 
 
Discussion was held. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
G. Motion to approve Resolution 2025-07 for applicant SC CLAN LLC dba Full Moon 

Saloon submission to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission for issuance of a 
Social District Permit. 

 
Motion by McLean, with support from Resseguie, to approve Resolution 2025-07 
for applicant SC CLAN LLC dba Full Moon Saloon submission to the Michigan Liquor 
Control Commission for issuance of a Social District Permit. 
 
Discussion held. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
H. Motion to approve Resolution 2025-09 to approve the submission of an 

application for local bridge preventative maintenance funding for the Michigan 
Avenue Bridge. 

 
Motion by Brehm, with support from Barlow, to approve Resolution 2025-09 to 
approve the submission of an application for local bridge preventative maintenance 
funding for the Michigan Avenue Bridge. 
 
Discussion held. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
I. Motion to approve the change order for the refeeding of electrical to the Fish 

Hatchery Restrooms in the amount of $11,100. 
 

Motion by Nesbitt, with support from McLean, to approve the change order for the 
refeeding of electrical to the Fish Hatchery Restrooms in the amount of $11,100. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 
 



4535 
 

Council Minutes  March 24, 2025 

J. Motion to approve the modifications to the City of Hastings Employee Handbook as 
presented. 

 
Motion by Brehm, with support from Devroy, to approve the modifications to the City 
of Hastings Employee Handbook as presented. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
K. Motion to approve the installation of three signet insertion flow meters on wells 1, 3 

& 4 by Peerless Midwest for the amount of $10,860.30. 
 

Motion by Barlow, with support from Resseguie, to approve the installation of three 
signet insertion flow meters on wells 1, 3 & 4 by Peerless Midwest for the amount of 
$10,860.30. 
 
Discussion was held. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
L. Motion to authorize the signing of a LOI with MD7 regarding future AT&T easement 

upon final review of the City Manager and the City Attorney. 
 

Motion by Stenzelbarton, with support from Brehm, to authorize the signing of a LOI 
with MD7 regarding future AT&T easement upon final review of the City Manager 
and the City Attorney. 
 
Discussion held. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
11. Staff Presentations and Policy Discussions: 

A. 1st Ward City Council Appointment process 

Discussion held.   

12. City Manager Report: 

Road salt estimates for next year coming in August. Approved emergency repairs on 
vactor truck, requiring a rental vactor truck, for $13,500. Progress being made on 
Green and Market St. project. Work on continued ambulance service. 
 



4536 
 

Council Minutes  March 24, 2025 

Discussion was held. 
 

A. Polic Chief Boulter Monthly Report 
B. City Clerk/Treasurer Perin Monthly Financial Reports 
C. Community Development Director King Monthly Report 

 
13. Reports and Communications: 

A. DRAFT DDA Minutes – March 20, 2025 
 

Motion by Brehm, with support from Nesbitt, to accept item A and place on file. 
All ayes. Motion carried. 

 
14. Public Comment: 

Comments from Pattrick Jansens, new Barry County Emergency Manager, providing 
background and experience. 
 

15. Mayor and Council comment: 

Comments from Nesbitt, giving thanks for the time on council, giving thanks for 
supporting the police for hiring and academy, and for the new 911 tower. 
 
Comments from McLean to promote Social District more to the City of Hastings. 
 
Comments from Rocha about Barry County not having a July 4th parade, he feels it is 
worth exploring. 

 
16. Closed Session: 

 
A. Consider entering into Closed Session as permitted by PA 267 of 1976, Section 

15.268-8 (c ) for strategy and negotiation sessions connected with the negotiation of 
a collective bargaining agreement. 

 
Motion by Brehm, with support by McLean, to enter into Closed Session as permitted 
by PA 267 of 1976, Section 15.268-8 (c ) for strategy and negotiation sessions 
connected with the negotiation of a collective bargaining agreement. Roll Call Vote: 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tosssava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. Meeting adjourned to closed session at 7:56 PM.  
 
Return to Open Session at 8:38 PM. 

 
17. Adjourn: 

Motion by McLean, with support from Nesbitt, to adjourn meeting. 
All ayes. Motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 8:38 PM. 
 



4537 
 

Council Minutes  March 24, 2025 

  
 
Read and Approved: 
 
 
 
________________________     ___________________________ 
David J. Tossava, Mayor      Linda Perin, City Clerk 
 

 
 



City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION MONTH 
Whereas: Child abuse and neglect is a serious problem, ranking as one of the greatest risks 

to the health and well-being of Barry County children; and 

Whereas: Child abuse and neglect may be the result of various social problems such as 
inadequate parenting skills, family violence, poverty, family dysfunction, mental 
health problems, homelessness and crime; and 

Whereas: The most recent Barry County data from 2023 reported 112 confirmed victims of 
child abuse and neglect ages 0-17 by Children’s Protective Services; and 

Whereas: The Family Support Center of Barry County has been designated by Michigan’s 
Children Trust Michigan to lead alongside local community-based programs to 
assist in expediting efforts to prevent child abuse now and in future generations 
through joint interagency prevention efforts; and 

Whereas: The most precious and valuable asset of our county is our children, and we must 
dedicate ourselves, our energy and our resources to the nurturing and protection 
of these most vulnerable individuals – protecting children and strengthening 
Barry County families is a shared community responsibility; and 

Whereas: Community action is needed to help families break the cycle of abuse with small 
or simple gestures – just by reaching out and showing you care about the 
children in your family and neighborhood demonstrates that we value our 
children; 

Now, therefore, be it resolved, that I, David J Tossava, Mayor of the City of Hastings, do hereby 
declare April 2025 as 

CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION MONTH IN HASTINGS, MICHIGAN 

And I urge all citizens to work together to help reduce child abuse and neglect significantly in 
the years to come. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my 
Hand and caused the Official Seal of the City of 
Hastings, Michigan, to be affixed this 14th day of 
APRIL 2025 

David J Tossava, Mayor 

8A



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Budget Workshop 

Meeting Date: April 14, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to schedule the Budget Workshop for Monday, April 28,  2025, at 6:00 pm. 

Background Information:  

Prior to the adoption of the budget, the City Manager typically presents the budget at a 

workshop session of the council. Modifications to the budget proposal are often made as a 

result of feedback from the council. The budget calendar places this on the schedule prior to 

the next regular council meeting.  

Financial Implications:  

None. 

Attachments: 

None. 

9A



No. Vendor Amount Description (with date paid)
1 Integrated Controls, Inc. $6,995.00 Freshwater Treatment Plant Filter Upgrade (4/7/2025)
2 Bronner's Commercial 

Display
$17,059.00 Christmas  Displays - DDA (4/7/2025)

3 Advantage Plumbing & 
Drain

$18,174.00 Fiscal Year 2025 Lead Line Replacement (4/7/25)

4 AIS Construction 
Equipment

$27,050.00 Pull behind Air Compressor (4/7/2025)

5 GemSeal Pavement 
Products

$53,697.00 Crack Sealing Machine (4/7/2025)

5 Invoices $122,975.00

Summary - City of Hastings Invoices
City Council Meeting

April 14, 2025

9B



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Purchase of Security Doors  

Meeting Date: April 14, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve the purchase and installation of four doors by Discount Lock and Door in the 

amount of $5,250.  

Background Information:  

This will replace the exterior doors at the former water plant on Mill Street. The building is 

being used for secure storage, and the existing doors are inadequate for this purpose.  

We received a quote from Discount Lock and Door for $5,250 and from S.A. Morman & Co for 

$9,230.  

Financial Implications:  

This cost is split between the water fund and other funds that use the facility.  

Attachments: 

 Quote from Discount Lock & Door

10A







Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: City Council  

From: Verne Robins, Utilities Superintendent 

Subject: Purchase of Replacement Bulbs from Trojan for the UV System. 

Meeting Date: April 14, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve the Proposal from Trojan to purchase new bulbs for the wastewater UV 

system in the amount of $9,602.88. 

Background Information:  

We have two banks of UV lights with 24 bulbs in each bank. The UV system bulbs are 

recommended to be changed at the 10,000-12,000 hours. We have exceeded the useful life of 

this bank. We replaced the other bank of bulbs a couple years ago. Both banks were installed at 

the same time, and we wanted to separate the need to replace both banks with bulbs at the 

same time. This allows us greater flexibility when repairs or cleaning are necessary. Trojan is the 

manufacturer of equipment and bulbs specifically for their system. They must be of a certain 

wavelength and require a specific wattage to not damage their control system.  

Financial Implications:  

This item will be expensed from the water and sewer fund using available funds from deferred 

projects.  

Attachments: 

 Quote from Trojan UV systems

10B







Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: City Council  

From: Fire Chief Mark Jordan  

Subject: Repairs to fuel island system  

Meeting Date: April 12th, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve Rohr Gasoline Equipment Company to make repairs to fuel island not to exceed 

$14,805.05. 

Background Information:  

During annual testing and hydro inspections, deficiencies were indicated that urgently need resolved. 

This consists of the leak probes and tank sensors mounts. Due to the age of the drop pipe, it will no 

longer seal correctly allowing the possibility of water contamination into the diesel tank.  Secondly the 

tank monitor panel is failing with errors in the alarm reading and notification due to a bad motherboard. 

Due to the age of the monitor, I recommend replacing it with a new device.  

Financial Implications:  

The total cost of the project, $14,805.05 the funds are available in budgeted maintenance category. 

Attachments: Quote 

 Inspection report

 Estimate to make the repairs

10C



 
 

 

Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 







Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: City Council  

From: Verne Robins, Utilities Superintendent 

            Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Filter Media Automatic Flushing System 

Meeting Date: 4-14-2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve the proposal from Integrated Controls for the purchase and installation of 

three Signet Insertion flow meters on wells 1,3 & 4 for $18,769.61. 

Background Information:  

This is the continuation of an agenda item from the March 24 meeting. At that meeting, we had 

another quote which was approved for flow meters to be purchased from Peerless Midwest for 

$10,860.30. After that approval, we learned that Peerless had not quoted the correct flow 

meters. The new price would exceed the price from Integrated Controls. The updated quotes 

are included with this memo. The quote from ICI also includes the hookup to the SCADA.  

We want to add one flow meter to each well to monitor how much water is produced. We 

currently have 3 wells that do not have flow meters on them. We currently have no way to 

monitor the pump performance. The new flow meters will allow us to see fluctuations in 

performance and help diagnose well pump issues before critical failures occur. They will also 

provide us with information that will allow for pump speed control with the VFD’s (variable 

frequency drives) we put on a few years ago. We will incorporate this information into our 

SCADA system where we will be able to trend flows. This will help to schedule maintenance and 

trouble shoot issues. The information obtained from these flow meters will also be used to 

calculate the volume of water being produced from our aquifer. The Integrated controls quote 

also includes programming for SCADA integration. 

10D



 
 

Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

Financial Implications:  

This item was not budgeted for this fiscal year. This is an upgrade to our system to allow for 

greater functionality and monitoring of our system. We will use funds from deferred projects 

for this project.  

 

Attachments: 

 Quote from Integrated Controls Inc.  

 Revised quote from Peerless Midwest.  



Date 3/12/2025 QUOTE #

ITEM REF QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT EXT

1 T CONTROL 
PANEL

3 RTU ANALOG UPDATE FOR FLOW METER 
●  PARTS 1) Micro PLC Analog Input Card

 $      542.79  $     1,628.37 

2 T INSERTION 
MAGS

3 10" INSERTION FLOW MAG METER
●  Signet Insertion Mag Meter w/ Meter Saddle

 $   4,772.92  $   14,318.76 

3 ON SITE 
INSTALL NO-
CONDUIT

1 Onsite Hookup Between Flow Meter and SCADA RTU ALL (Soft Install) 
●  Provide and Install exposed meter conductor between insertion flow meter and 
     RTU SCADA Panel
●  Program RTU PLC for monitoring flow rate and no flow on run shut down and 
     alarm. Added cost for conduit (Sch 80PVC Condit) T&M + this cost.

 $   2,822.48  $     2,822.48 

4 T METER 
INSTALLATION

1 On Site Meter Installation By Customer 
●  Customer to drill water main for flow meter, approx. 2" cut out. ICI to provide 
     installation specifications and support.

 $             -    $               -   

5 SHIPPING 1 Shipping To Job Site in Hastings Mi  Well House(s)  $             -    $               -   

6 WARRANTY 1 12 Month Warranty     

7 DOCS 1 SUBMITTALS & O&M PROVIDED PER BID SPEC
Additional copies of electronic files at no additional cost

 $               -   

8 BY OTHERS 1 TO BE SUPPLIED BY OTHERS NOT INCLUDED IN THIS QUOTE:
● Meter Installation Labor

  

9 ADDENDUM 1 RECEIVED: ADDENDUM n/a

SUB TOTAL $18,769.61
TAX EXEMPT 0%  $               -   

TOTAL $18,769.61

HWT-31225

930 Duell Road
Traverse City MI 49686
Ph 231-941-1030
Fx 231-941-5380

Attn: Verne Robins | Hastings Water Superintendent

Municipal & Industrial Automated  Design Build Services

Normal terms are Net 30 and subject to purchase agreement of Integrated Controls Inc. sales contract.
Delivery time dependent on availability of components.  Delivery time  to be a minimum of 6 weeks from the date of receipt of approved Submittals by Integrated Controls Inc.  
All parts and orders up to  $10,000.00 are subject to a potential minimum 25% deposit, and the remainder due on date of delivery of goods and services sold. Projects over 
$10,000.00, may be billed on a progressive monthly cycle based on % complete, where a minimum of 30% is due with approved submittals, 65% Due before delivery and final 
5% due at start up.  
All parts subject to the limitations of the manufactures warranty, with a standard 1 year from the date of purchase. All labor is warranted for 1 year from the date delivery.   This 
quote is good for 30 days unless noted otherwise.

Re: Hastings water well flow meters to be installed at each well head.  Data to be monitored, trended, and recorded at all times
to verify flow and flow rate, with minimum flow rate to be linked to run command logic and alarming.



PEERLESS-MIDWEST, INC.

Provide three(3) 10" Signet pipe saddles $4,782.65

$14,722.70

Revised 3/27/2025DATE

Attn:  Verne Robbins

Install three(3) insert style flow meters in 10" ductile iron pipe

Provide three(3) Signet 10" insert style magmeters 

Bob Masters, Project Manager 

Total: $23,005.35

$3,500.00

DATE

TITLE

ACCEPTED BY

QUOTATION

QUOTE #
City of Hastings

Provide and install three(3) insert flow meters at Wells 1, 3 and 4

Water Department

REFERENCE

RWM 2025-0327R



Regular Council 

Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: City Council 

From: Robert Neil Superintendent of Streets 

Subject: Root Control 

Meeting Date: April 14th, 2025 

Recommended Action: 

Motion to Approve a 2025 Root Control for approx. 10,428 ft of sanitary sewer main lines 

from Perceptive Services and Operations in the amount $28,677. 

Background Information: 

A request for proposals was sent out to vendors to submit a proposal forroot control for 

approximately 10,428 feet of sewer main line. Two (2) quotes were received, 1- from Dukes 

Root Control (no Price Sheet Included), and 1- from Perceptive Service and Operations. 

Perceptive Service and operations have previously done work for us under the SAW grant 

back in 2019. I would like to recommend Perceptive Operation and Service. Perceptive has 

given us a quote that includes pre/post camera as well as root cutting. Dukes only included 

chemical treatment. 

Root Control can be a major problem in our sewer infrastructure system. Our sewer mains 

are below the ground, with the continuous flow and moisture in these lines, this is a great 

environment for roots to thrive. Getting started with root control will help prevent future 

backups for residents and fewer insurance claims. 

Financial Implications: 

This cost is below the budgeted expense of $35,000. 

Attachments: 

• Perceptive Operation and services

• Dukes root control

10E



t 
DUKE'S 

ROOTED IN INNOVATION- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PREPAREDFO City 0f Hast ngs 



t 
eDUKE'S 

ROOTED IN INNOVATION- 

 

 
2025 Santiary Sewer Root Control 

City of Hastings I April 1, 2025 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 1, 2025 
 
 

City of Hastings 

201 East State Street 

Hastings, Ml 49058 

RE: 2025 Santiary Sewer Root Control 

To Whom it May Concern, 

Thank you for the opportunity to be of service to City of Hastings. Enclosed you•will find a bid submission for the 2025 Santiary Sewer Root 

Control Bid scheduled to open on April 1, 2025. Should you need further assistance, please feel free to contact me at (800) 447-6687. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
 

 
) 

 

 
Valerie Kielp 

Opportunity Coordinator 

Duke's Root Control, Inc. 



 

 

140 East Bridge Street, Plainwell,Ml 49080 

www.perceptiveso com 
 

 
March 31, 2025 

 
City of Hastings 
Office of the City Clerk/Treasurer 
201 East State Street 
Hastings, Ml 49058 

 

 
To whom it may concern. 

 
Perceptive Service & Operations, Inc, is pleased to submit our proposal for: 

 
2025 Sanitary Sewer Root Control 

 
Thank you for taking the time to review our proposal for your work. We are a Southwest 
Michigan owned and operated business, with deep roots in the water and wastewater 
processing systems of many Southwest Michigan communities. We are proud to provide our 
services to the communities where we not only work, but live. Our facility is located on King 
Hwy just a short distance from Kalamazoo and we are proud to have partnered with the City of 
Hastings in the past for Cleaning and Televising services. 

 
Please see our proposal below consisting of timing, inclusions, exclusions and price. If helpful 
to you, or if anything looks off, we would love to schedule a call to explain, clarify or correct 
any questions you may have. 

 
Perceptive ProposalNote: 

 
This proposal is NOT for chemical root treatment. In our professional opinion, 
chemically treating all of these lines for roots could put the wastewater treatment 
center out of balance though the potential of killing the critical bugs used in the 
treatment process. 

 
Therefore, our alternate proposal is for a 3-step process. 

1. Pre-televise the lines - This will identify problem areas including the presence 
of any excessive roots, as well as the identification of any other problem areas, 
including areas of heavy debris. 

 

 
Page 2 of4 



2. Clean & Root Cut the lines - This will flush the lines and incorporate root 
cutting in any of the areas pre-defined during the pre-televise stage. 

3. Post Clean/Cut Televise - After cleaning and root cutting, we will televise the 
lines again, as a post cleaning and cutting verification of the work performed 
and the completed status of the lines. 

4. Option - Manhole Cleaning and Inspection - Perceptive has the capability 
also, to perform certified manhole inspections. After cleaning the manhole 
with our Combo Vactor unit, using state of the art technology, these scans 
document the condition of each structure, as well as identify any problems 
present that need addressing in a 360-degree viewing video. A type 2 manhole 
inspection to MACP (by NASCCO) standards. We have included a price per 
manhole for this optional service. 

 
Timing: 

 
The timing requirements for this work were not stipulated in the request for proposal. 
However, weather (safety) and the City of Hastings permitting, we would expect to begin this 
work mid-May of 2025 or sooner and complete the work no later than the 1st of July. 

 
Proposal Pricing: 

 
:item 

Pr -CleaninWCuttirigTelevise & Inspection 

Price P ri Unit! 
..-..  . . ꞏꞏꞏꞏ- --. ꞏ.,...--- ----ꞏ: .... . ----- ' .. 
$ 0.75 • /ft 

'<?!Yi.
10,428 • 

Ext Price' 
. "  . ....... ••'••- ꞏꞏ-.-ꞏ 

$ 7,821.00. 
Cleanin and Root Cutting $ 1.25 /ft 10,428 $ 13,035.00 
Post Cleanin /Cutting Televise & Inspection $ 0.75 /ft 10,428 $ 7,821.00 
Optional Manhole Structure Inspections $ 130.00 /hole  $ 

 
Total Anticipated Charges 

 
$ 28,677.00 

 
Pricing Includes: 

• Total Televising, Cleaning and Re-televising Feet - 10,428 (Including root cutting and 
removal where needed) 

• Televising performed by PACP, MACP Certified operator, by NASSCO standards. 
• Traffic Control equipment, vehicles and staffing and MDOT permitting included where 

required. 
• Written notification to residents and businesses in the affected areas 48 hours prior. 
• Dewatering and Material disposal at Hastings Wastewater Treatment. If this capability 

is unavailable, we can provide disposal at another facility, billing only at cost. 
• Water supplied at no cost by the City of Hastings. It can also be provided if not 

available. 
• Full WinCan video and Data files will be provided at completion of project. 
• Estimate has been based on the RFP document and Streets and footages presented 

therein. 
 
 

Page 3 of4 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: City Council  

From: Verne Robins, Utilities Superintendent 

Subject: Purchase of approved pump from Detroit Pump 

Meeting Date: April 14, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve quote from Detroit Pump for the purchase of an aluminum sulfate 

heater/pump skid in the amount of $31,685. 

Background Information:  

The existing aluminum sulfate tank heaters are antiquated and failing. They are fiberglassed 

into the bottom of the tank. For us to repair this, it would take draining the tank, cutting out 

the bottom of the tank, and installing new heat plates, wiring, and upgrading the controllers. By 

approving this request for the heat exchanger, we will be able to have a recirculating pump that 

will heat the alum as it returns to the tank and will allow us to divert some of the flow to fill our 

day tank.  

If we have a failure of the heater, it is easier to remove the heater unit and replace with a new 

one. This unit will be inside and away from the elements and easier to maintain. Alum is 

corrosive, so this pump will be built to withstand corrosive conditions. The alum will not 

encounter the heating element; it will pass through a heated tube. The pump will keep the 

alum recirculating to help with crystallization that occurs with aluminum sulfate. The 

recirculation will also help keep the alum from settling out in the bottom of the tank.  

We shopped several vendors and Detroit Pump is the only vendor we could get to give us a 

price for the entire skid pump and heater in one unit and this is the unit that was approved 

through the Part 41 permitting process through the State of Michigan Department of 

Environment, Great Lakes and Energy. 

10F



 
 

Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

Financial Implications:  

This item was budgeted for in 2024, however our part 41 permitting process with EGLE has 

taken longer than expected and was just approved this month. The pump has increased in price 

from the original quote.  

 

Attachments: 

 Quote from Detroit Pump 

 Project plans 











PROP. DAY TANK
ELKHART PLASTICS
330 GALLON HDPE

TUFF STACK

E
X
. 
A
L
U
M
 F

E
E
D
 P

IP
IN

G

PROP. ALUM
HEATER

PUMP/SKID BY
DETROIT PUMP

PROP.
CHEMICAL

FEED PUMP &
PIPING TO
MATCH

EXISTING

1" PEX ALUM SUPPLY

PROP. ThermoPEX® PIPING SYSTEM TO/FROM BULK TANK

1" PEX ALUM RETURN

PROP.
DEADMAN
VALVE FOR
FILLING DAY

TANK

CONNECT TO ThermoPEX® PIPING
SYSTEM OR APPROVED EQUAL

PROP. 6" CURB
FOR CHEMICAL
CONTAINMENT

PROP. DAY TANK
ELKHART PLASTICS
330 GALLON HDPE

TUFF STACK

PROP. CHEMICAL
FEED PUMP &

PIPING TO MATCH
EXISTING.

PROP. ALUM
HEATER

PUMP/SKID

1" PEX ALUM SUPPLY

PROP. CORE
FOR NEW ALUM

SUPPLY &
RETURN LINE

1" PEX ALUM RETURN

NOTE: SECONDARY CONTAINMENT CURB NOT
DRAWN FOR PIPING CLARITY PURPOSES.

PROP. NEAR-FLOOR
LEVEL FLOAT WITH

ALARM

INSTALLATION NOTE: ANY EXISTING FLOOR
DRAINS IN CURB CONTAINMENT AREA TO BE
NEAT CEMENT SEALED.

PROP. 1" ThermoPEX® INSULATED PIPING

SYSTEM OR APPROVED EQUAL (BURIED).

12" MINIMUM TRENCH DEPTH PER

MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATION.

SEE PIPING SYSTEM DETAIL THIS SHEET.

EXTEND ThermoPEX® PIPING INTO BULK STORAGE
TANK SECONDARY CONTAINMENT AREA.  SEE BULK
TANK CONNECTION DETAIL THIS SHEET.
SEAL PIPE PENETRATION USING PIPE BOOT ON
CONTAINMENT EXTERIOR AND CONCRETE PATCH ON
CONTAINMENT INTERIOR.

EX. LOW LEVEL
ALARM SENSOR
CONNECTION

CONNECT 1" PEX ALUM
SUPPLY PIPING TO EX. PORT.
CONNECT WITH SPECIALTY
FABRICATED 316 STAINLESS
STEEL FLANGE FITTING BY
OTHERS.

CONNECT 1" PEX ALUM RETURN
PIPING TO EX. PORT.  CONNECT
WITH SPECIALTY FABRICATED 316
STAINLESS STEEL FLANGE
FITTING BY OTHERS.

PROP. 1" PEX ALUM SUPPLY
PIPING WITH HEAT TAPE

PROP. 1" PEX ALUM RETURN
PIPING WITH HEAT TAPE

ORIGINAL HEATING
ELEMENT CONNECTION

(PREVIOUSLY
ABANDONED IN PLACE)

EXTEND PEX RETURN LINE
INTO TANK, ELBOW WITH
EXTENSION UPWARD (MINIMUM
12" VERTICAL).  SUPPORT
EXTENSION AS NECESSARY.

®

®

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIGURE NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
P1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEMICAL FEED PIPING DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF HASTINGS WWTP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARRY COUNTY, MICHIGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAS601

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SJKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JRH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DJT

AutoCAD SHX Text
06/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
2024 CHEMICAL FEED IMPROVEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
06/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UMAINTENANCE ROOM PIPING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UMAINTENANCE ROOM DETAIL - SECTION A-A'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UEXTERIOR PIPING SCHEMATIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THERMOPEX®  PIPING SYSTEM DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THERMOPEX®  TERMINATION CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UBULK TANK CONNECTION DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS PER EGLE REVIEW COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
JRH



To: City Council 

Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

From: Robert Neil Superintendent of Streets 

Subject: W. Woodlawn Asphalt Patching 

Meeting Date: April 14th, 2025 

Recommended Action: 

Motion to approve the milling and patching of West Woodlawn Avenue from Lakeland Asphalt for 
$49,900. 

Background Information: 

W. Woodlawn Ave has had major issues with potholes. Hastings DPS has spent a lot of time and

material patching many of the spots that are included in this proposal. This action would include

3" mill and fill in the affected areas west of the Health Department driveway and a complete

Mill and fill from Health Department Driveway to N. Broadway ending at the beginning of the

State Highway Right-of-Way.

Financial Implications: 

There are accounts that can be utilized for this project that have extra funds in them or funds 

that have not been used this year.  

Attachments: 

• Pictures of a few affected areas

• Lakeland Asphalt

• Murrays Asphalt

• LT's Asphalt

• Frickie Asphalt

10G



W. Woodlawn between N. Broadway and 720 W. Woodlawn 

 

 

 



 
 
 

 
 

,.,.,,,,.,..,_ 

i ic l1a)J0sis, @ii1,ec1ailsi 
®IJ'W Wi LF!Ju@ &er@ 

• Grade, compact and weed kill 

• Install 1.5" 13A asphalt base 

• Install 1,5" 36A Asphalt top 

17,490 Sq. Feet- 3" East of Health Dept. to Broadway 

2,917 Sq. Feet- West of Health Dept. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
We propose to furnish material & labor-complete in accordance with the above specifications for the sum of:. $61,500.00 

$ .S,.,.ixty-_,,O...,n..,.e....,T'""'h..,,.o=us,..a=n=d..,_F..,_,iv..,,e,_,H_.,..u.n.....,d....,re.ud. ............ ,Du:o=ll=ars= 

 
With payments made as follows: 500/o due at signing. balance paid ON completion 

Respectfully Submitted:  @  ?#'  

Acceptance of Proposal 

By signing this estimate, you are ag eeing to the terms and conditions Signature:   _ 
listed on page 2. In addition, you are authorizing us to do the work 
and agreeing to make payments as outlined above. 

Date Of Acceptance:   _ Signature:  _ 

 
1 





Murray’s Asphalt  
1727 Moore Road 

Woodland, MI 48897 
(269)948-9369 

www.murraysasphalt.com 
 

 

City of Hastings 
Hastings, MI 49058 
269-838-8395 
rneil@hastingsmi.gov 

04-04-2025 

 
We hereby submit specifications and estimates for:   

 
Mill & Repave from Health Department to Broadway and  
Mill and Repave Misc. Areas West of Health Department 

 
 

• Mill to a depth of 3” and haul away 
 

• Grade, compact and weed kill 
 

• Install 1.5” 13A asphalt base 
 

• Install 1.5” 36A Asphalt top 
 
 17,490 Sq. Feet– 3” East of Health Dept. to Broadway 
 
 2,917 Sq. Feet– West of Health Dept.         
    
 
 

We propose to furnish material & labor-complete in accordance with the above specifications for the sum of:. $61,500.00 
 
$                                                                       Sixty One Thousand Five Hundred                      Dollars 

Respectfully Submitted:          Willie Murray                   

Acceptance of Proposal 

By signing this estimate, you are agreeing to the terms and conditions 
listed on page 2. In addition, you are authorizing us to do the work 
and agreeing to make payments as outlined above. 

Date Of Acceptance:_________________________________ 

Signature:___________________________ 

Signature:___________________________ 

All seal coat prices are valid for 30 days. 
 
All paving prices are valid for 15 days. 

With payments made as follows:    50% due at signing, balance paid ON completion    

Cash, checks, money orders, Visa & Master-
card 
ALL CREDIT CARD TRANSACTIONS HAVE  
3.5% INTEREST FOR HOMEOWNERS AND 
3.5% FOR CORPORATIONS. 



Murray’s Asphalt  
1727 Moore Road 

Woodland, MI 48897 
(269)948-9369 

www.murraysasphalt.com 
 

 

 
 

Murray’s Asphalt Terms and Conditions 
 
 

• Customer is responsible for backfilling, topsoiling & seeding after installation, unless otherwise stated. 
  
 The finished asphalt height may be higher or lower than the lawn to maintain proper water flow.  
 

• We can’t guarantee water drainage on a surface less than 2% slope. 
 

• We are not responsible for any damage to concrete or asphalt due to heavy equipment.  
 

• If the existing sub-base is unstable, additional removal and product will be charged on a time and material basis. 
 

• Asphalt contains stone for strength. This will cause some stone to be visible in the finished product. 
 

• Parking on new asphalt and/ or turning your tires can create tire marks for the first year, sometimes longer. Do your best 
to park on concrete whenever possible. 

 

• Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written order, and 
will become an extra charge over and above the estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents, or delays 
beyond our control. 

 

• We are not responsible for any unmarked sprinkler heads, and wires or cables that may become broken or damaged.  
 

• We are not responsible for tree root damage on driveway/ parking lot if asphalt is within 25’ of a tree. 
 

• We can’t guarantee that there won’t be some puddles when it rains at the road due to the height of City, County or State 
road drainage.  

 
Please sign below acknowledging you have read and agree to our terms and conditions. 

    
Customer Signature:           

 
Date Of Acceptance:____________________ 







Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: The Honorable Mayor, City Council Members, and Sarah Moyer-Cale 

From: Rob Neil Superintendent of 

Streets Subject: WWTP Truck Purchase 

#40 Meeting Date: Monday April 14th 

Recommended Action: 

Motion to approve the purchase from Fox Ford of a 2024 Ford F250 4x4 crew cab pickup 
for the amount of $52,004.  

Background Information: 

This vehicle could also be purchased at Lunghammer Ford for $51,020 with the upfit 
charge of $4,585.00 for a total of $55,605. Fox Ford will have the truck available in one 
week while Lunhgammer Ford is 90-120 days for delivery. This would be a difference of 
$984. 

The wastewater service truck is used in the city for sewer lift station checks, mercury sample 
test taking, and parts pickup. It is also used in Carlton Twp for sewer customers around the lakes for 
maintenance operations. 

Financial Impact: 

WWTP Truck# 40 is in the capital improvement plan and budget to be replaced. It was 
predicted to be purchased for $90,000, but this truck and upfit would come in at a price of 
$56,589. 

Attachments: 

• Fox Ford
• Lunghammer Ford
• Hoekstra Equipment
• Truck and Trailer specialties

10H



 
CUSTOMER INFORMATION FOX I FORD Only the Best SALES ORDER 

3560- 28TH Street, S.E. Grand Rapids, Michigan 49512 

Main Phone (616) 956-5511 Fax (616) 855-3439 

Salesperson 

Jim McCormick 
Work No 

(616) 855-3473 

Fax No 

(616) 855-3439 

My E-Mail Address 

jmccormick@foxmotors.com 
 

FOX FORD'S SALE PRICE 
 
$ 53,209.00 

Company Name 

CITY OF HASTINGS 
 

DOC FEE 
 
$ 280.00 

Address 

201 ESTATE ST 
 

CVR FEE 
 

City 

HASTINGS 

State  
Ml 

  
STATE SALES TAX 

 
EXEMPT 

Zip  
49508 

County Company Tax Id  
MICHIGAN TITLE FEE 

 
$ 15.00 

Work Number Fax Number Cell Phone FIN Code  
PLATE or in TRANSIT FEE $ - 

Work E-Mail Address   

 REBATE # $ (1,500.00) 
VEHICLE DESCRIPTION 

New or Used 

NEW 

Plate No. Plate Expires Plate Value   

 REBATE # $ - 
Year  

2024 

Make  
Ford 

Model 

F250 CREW 

Body Style 

PICKUP  REBATE # $ - 
Miles Exterior Color 

WHITE 

Interior Color 

GRAY  REBATE # $ - 
Stock No 

24T883 

Vehicle No. 

1FTW2BA3RED89974  REBATE # $ - 
VEHICLE INSURANCE INFORMATION 

Insurance Co. Policy No. 

ANY UPFIT EXPENSES #1 $ - 
Agents Address Agents Name  

ANY UPFIT EXPENSES #2 
 
$ - 

City  State  Zip  Phone 

TOTAL PRICE OF THE UNIT $ 52,004.00 

VEHICLE PREPARATION and DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS  

To Service  

PREP, CLEAN & FILL 
Misc:  

Payments: 
 

Location 

Trade in or PLATE is From 
Year Make Model Body Style 

 Notes: 
Trade Stock No. Vehicle No. Miles 

Gross Trade In Trade Pay Off Good Until Interest Per Day 

Pay Off To Phone No. Account No. 

Address 

City  State  Zip    

Sellers Approval (Subject to Finance Company Approval)  Buyers Approval 

X 
 Date 



 ii, 
Lunghammer 

Ford Of Owosso 

 
March 24, 2025 

 
City of Hastings 
Attn: JR Argo 
201 E. State St. 
Hastings, Ml 49058 

Dear JR Argo: 

Price on 2025 Vehicle State of Michigan Contract# MA 240000001208 and Macomb 
County Contract# 21-18 Bid: 

(1) 2025 Ford F250 Crew Cab 4x4 XL Pickup 8' Box in White $51,020.00 ea 
 

Order Cutoff Date: TBD. 
Deliver Date:Approximately 90-120 Days A.R.O. 

Standard Service Contract: 36,000 miles or 36 months factory Bumper to Bumper Warranty and 
60,000miles 60 months Powertrain Warranty. Service to be handled by your local Ford Dealer. 

 
Ford Motor Company does not guarantee delivery---Ford Motor Company will make reasonable 
efforts to schedule orders received prior to fleet order cut-off date. 

Payment requirements: All departments to pay on delivery of vehicle. 10-day grace period will be given 
if previous arrangements have been made. A $9.50 per day floor plan will be charged if payment is not at 
the dealership within 10 days of delive1y of the vehicle (s). 

 
If you have any questions please call me, 888-92-FLEET (923-5338) 

 
Respectfully Subinitted, 

 

 
Bill Campbell 
Govemment & Fleet Sales 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1960 E Main St Owosso, Ml 48867, 888-92-FLEET (888.923.5338) Fax 517-625-5832 



Truck & Trailer Specialties 
3286 Hanna Lake Ind. Park Dr. 

Dutton,- MI. 49316 
Phone 616-698-8215, Fax 616-698-0972 

Quote No. DQO005805 

 
City of Hastings 
Attn: Jr Argo 
Phone: 269-838-655 
March 17, 2025 

 

Equipment Quotation 
Chassis: 2024 Ford F250, 8' bed 

 
Supply and install Back Rack Safey truck rack including: 

Model #10700 
2" fully welded wire mesh screen 
Black powdercoat finish 
30222 - Standard no-drill installation kit 

Supply and install two Weatherguard Hi Side toolboxes including: 
Model #396-5-02 
Outside Dimensions: 96-1/4" L x 16" T x 13 1/4" D 
Black powder coat finish 
Swing down doors 
Gutter design 
Automotive D-shaped Ribbed rubber weather stripping 
3-point latching system 

Custom Lighting and Electrical including the following: 
Two (2) SoundOff 4" Mpower LED amber/green warning flashers, grill mounted, 

one each side 
SoundOff Pinnacle LED amber/green mini light bar installed on Backrack 
Two (2) SoundOff 4" Mpower LED amber/green warning flashers installed on the rear bumper 
Above emergency lighting to be wired to one chassis supplied upfitter switch (keyed power) 

Above installed Price: $4,585.00 per chassis 

Lead time: 6-10 Weeks ARO 

Payment Terms: Net 30 

Pricing good for: 30 days 

Thank you for the opportunity to quote 

Submitted by: 
Jenny Offringa / Mike Bouwman 



'-OJ .-0..HOEKSTrlA 
EQUIPMENT 

260 36TH STREET SE 

GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49548 

Phone: (616)24..!_-6664Fax: (616)241-1111 

Fll02IO 

Invoice No. 

Date 

Order Type 

Customer ID 

Sales Person 

Advisor 

E301013949 

3/3/2025 

Service Estimate 

HASTINGS CITY OF -13650 

THORSEN, MICHAEL R 

THORSEN, MICHAEL R 

 
 
 
 
 
 

BILL TO 

HASTINGS CITY OF 

301 E Court St 

HASTINGS, Ml 49058 

DELIVER TO 

HASTINGS CITY OF 

301 E Court St 

HASTINGS, MI 49058 

P: (269) 945-5083 

 
DATE PROMISED DATE INVOICE SALES TYPE UNITID TERMS CUSTOMER REFERENCE 

3/2/2025 6:08:lSPM  SACC VTACCES NET30 TOPSIDE TOOL BOXES 

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN CUSTOMER UNIT# IN SERVICE ODOMETER IN ODOMETER OUT 

  VAN/TRUCKACCESS  3/31/2015 0 0 
 

 
 

JOB#l E243 

SERVICE 

Estimate Operations 
 

SACC TOP SIDE/CROSS BOXES - PER BOX RATE 

TOP SIDE/CROSS BOXES - PER BOX RATE 

 
FORD SUPER DUTY WITH AN 8' BED. 
INSTALL (2) TOPSIDE TOOL BOXES ON TOP OF EACH BED RAIL. BLAKE MATTE ALUMINUM DIAMOND PLATE. 

INSTALL HEADACHE RACK WITH STROBE MOUNT. 

 
QTY ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE EXTD PRICE

2 301l/KNA396-5-02 96"Xl6'X13" BLK DP ALUM HI-SID 1,300.00 2,600.00 

1 30ll/WEA11906-52-0l HEX ALUMINUM HEADACHE RACK 1,050.00 1,050.00 

-- 
I
 

3011/WEA11920-52-0l CENTER LIGHT BRACKET 65.00 65.00 

LABOR E243 UNDERBED BOXES - PER BOX RATE - TOP MOUNT 135.00 540.00 

I FRT IN BOUND FREIGHT 25.00 25.00 

 

JOB#2 ElO0 
SERVICE 

SACC TRUCK INSTALLATION LABOR 

TRUCK INSTALLATION LABOR 

 
INSTALL 2 - AMBER STROBES IN THE FRONT GRILL. 

INSTALL 2 - AMBER STROBES ON THE REAR OF THE TRUCK. 
INSTALL AMBER MINI LED LIGHT BAR ON TOP OF HEADACHE RACK. 

HARDWIRE ALL LIGHTS TOGETHER TO A SINGLE UP-FITTER SWITCH. CONSTANT ON. 
 
 

QTY ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE EXTD PRICE

4 3012/SOUELJPSNA 3 LED MINI STROBE AMBER 75.00 300.00 

2 3012/SOUEL3SNBRKIGRU BRACKET STROBE LIGHTS 12.00 24.00 

1 3012/SOUEPL 730001-A 7300 PINNACLE MINI, AMBER PERM 225.00 225.00 
 LABOREl00 TRUCK INSTALLATION LABOR 135.00 1,147.50 

I FRT IN BOUND FREIGHT 25.00 25.00 

 
Page 1 of2 

A 



'(JJ EQUIPMENT 

--- ---------- hSTilvIArE 

t1lil HOEKSTrtA 

260 36TH STREET SE 

GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49548 

Phone: (616) 241-6664 Fax: (616) 241-1111 

Fll0210 

 

 
Invoice No. 

Date 

Order Type 

Customer ID 

Sales Person 

Advisor 

 
 

E301013949 

3/3/2025 

Service Estimate 

HASTINGS CITY OF - 13650 

THORSEN, MICHAEL R 

THORSEN, MICHAEL R 

 
 
 
 

 

Estimate Operations Totals Prepay: $0.00  Parts: $4,264.00 Labor: $1,687.50 Misc: $ 0 Au,bl t ti.!,..,_ . _ . "1!!1;,5Jl_ 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PLEASE NOTE 
 

 

Thank you for your business. By my signature, I hereby agree to pay the charges as listed on my 

invoice, per the terms that have been set for my customer account. An inspection of the unit has 

been done by me for product content, workmanship, operation and is deemed acceptable and in 

proper working order. 

 
Disclaimers of Warranties 

Any warranties on the product sold herby are those made by the manufacturer. The seller hereby 

expressly disclaims all warranties, either express or implied, including any implied warranty of 

merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose and the seller neither assumes nor authorizes any 

other person to assume for it any liability in connections with the sale of said merchandise. 

ESTIMATED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SHOP SUPPLIES 

MISC SUPPLIES 

TAX 

BILLED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

$202.50 

$0.00 

$0.00 

 
Repair Facility License #F110210 

 
QUOTE SUBJECT TO CHANGE BASED ON MANUFACTURER NOTICE OF PRICE INCREASE 

OR ADDED SURCHARGE. 

TOTAL $6,204.00 

 
Please Remit Pavment to: 

HOEKSTRA TRUCK EQUIPMENT 

260 36TH STREET SE 

Grand Rapids, MI 49548 
 

SIGNATURE   DATE/TIME   
 

A surcharge of 3% will be added onto any amounts paid with a credit card. 

Page 2 of2 

LABOR $1,687.50  

PARTS $4.264.00  

MISC $50.00  

SUBLET $0.00  

PREPAY $0.00  

SUBTOTAL $6,001.50  



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Mayor Tossava and City Council 

From: Dan King 

Subject: Downtown Business Team Rock the Block Street Dance Request 

Meeting Date: April 14, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve, under the direction of staff, the request from the Downtown Business 

Team (DBT) to conduct three (3) separate Block Party-Street Dances from 6:00 PM until 10:00 

PM on Saturday May 10, 2025, Saturday July 12, 2025, and Saturday August 9, 2025, and 

consent to street closures on the respective dates. 

Background Information:  

The DBT is requesting a closure of Jefferson Street from the mid-block alley between State 

Street and Court Street to the Highpoint Community Bank ATM exit lane between Court Street 

and Center Street, and the closure of Court Street from the entry/exit lane for Parking Lot One 

to the entrance to Parking Lot Two from 5:00 PM until 10:00 PM on May 10th for the Rock the 

Block street dance number one. DBT is requesting a street closure on State Street from 

Jefferson to Michigan from 5:00 PM until 10:00 PM on July 12th for street dance number two. 

DBT is requesting a street closure from 5:00 PM until 10:00 PM on August 9th on State Street 

from Church Street to Jefferson Street for street dance number three. The goal is to create an 

environment where people can come listen to music, dance, participate in outdoor games, or 

socialize with friends and neighbors. The locations chosen are in the heart of the Commons 

Area of the Social District. The DBT feel events such as these will bring awareness to the public 

of the Social District, enhancing economic development for the core downtown area.  

The Downtown Business Team organizes the two Girls Night Out events as well as the Jingle and 

Mingle event annually. Historically the events are well organized and staffed with engaged 

volunteers. 

Financial Implications:  

All barricades, traffic cones, and picnic tables would be made available to the organizers during 

regular Public Service Department hours of operation. 

10I



 
 

Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

 

Attachments: 

 Request Letter 

 Special Event Application with Site Plans 

 





Page 1 of 5 

City of Hastings 

Special Event Application 

The City of Hastings values the unique events and gatherings that make our community special. The City 

has created this application form to help organizations provide adequate information for their requests 

to be considered. Please contact the Community Development Department with any questions or 

concerns about this form.  

Section 1: Applicant/Organization Information 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant/Organization Name Phone 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

Contact Name           Phone                            Email 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Street         City        State   Zip 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact person on day of event (if different than above)    Phone   

Section 2: Event Information 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name of Event  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Description of Event 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Event Dates                                                                                  Time (From/To) 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Set up Date(s) and Time(s)  Clean Up Date(s) and Time(s) 

Tracy Baker / Down Town Business Team                                                                 269.217.2078

Tracy Baker                                          269.217.2078                         Tracy@Athomerealestate.org

107 E. State Street                             Hastings                   Michigan                                49058

Brian Reynolds                                                                                     269.838.5147

Hastings Social District 2024 Block Party

Rock The Block And Cornhole Tournament

Block party including live music and dancing along with a cornhole tournament

May 10, July 12th and August 9th                                      5:30 p.m. - 11:00 p.m.

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/ZxMB-qxoT-yEGV

https://dtlp.us/ZxMB-qxoT-yEGV


Page 2 of 5 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Location(s) of Event  

_____________________________________________________________________________________

Estimated number of volunteers                                                             Estimated daily attendance (if known) 

Section 3: Event Details 

Please indicate if any of the following will be a part of your event area: 

 Road closure 

o If checked, please provide a proposed detour route.

 Closure of public parking area 

 Use of park area  

 Firepits/open flame 

 Fireworks or pyrotechnics 

o If yes, provide a copy of liability insurance listing the City as an additional insured party.

 Food and/or non-alcoholic beverage service or sales (if yes, contact Barry County Health 

Department) 

o If yes, provide copy of Health Department Food Service License

 Temporary structures (including tents or pavilions) 

 Music 

o If yes, what time will music begin and end? _________________________________

o If yes, what type of music is proposed?   Live – Acoustic     Live - Amplification   Recorded

Loudspeakers or public address system

 Parade 

 Race (ex: 5K) 

 Vendors/sale of goods 

 Carnival rides 

o If yes, provide a copy of liability insurance listing the City as an additional insured party.

 Signs or banners 

 Animals/petting zoo 

 Portable restroom facilities 

 Donation collection/free will offering 

 Other______________________________________________________________________ 

 Alcohol  

o If yes, provide copy of liquor liability insurance with the City listed as an additional

insured.

o If yes, provide a copy of Michigan Liquor Control License Application.

o If yes, describe measures to be taken to prohibit the sale of alcohol to minors (use

separate pages if necessary).

o If the alcohol is being served in the Social District, a Council Resolution suspending the

district is required.

Jefferson Street in front of the Untied States mural between State Street and Alley next to OTT

5 people                                                                                                          100 peop50

5:30 p.m. - 10:00 p.m.

Live music From 6:00 p.m. - 10:00 p.m.

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/ZxMB-qxoT-yEGV

https://dtlp.us/ZxMB-qxoT-yEGV


Page 3 of 5 

Please describe how garbage will be managed? 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Section 4: Site & Event Plan 

Please prepare a site plan that includes the following information: 

Location of all temporary structures, food/concessions, booths, portable restrooms, road closures, 

barricades, music, event signage, garbage cans, and other event locations. Include location of exit 

pathways.  

4 additional trash cans will need to be dropped off

See Attached

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/ZxMB-qxoT-yEGV

https://dtlp.us/ZxMB-qxoT-yEGV


Page 4 of 5 

Section 5: Acknowledgements and Hold Harmless Agreement 

The Applicant understands and agrees to the following: 

1. This application is subject to review by various city departments and must be approved by the

City Council. Failure to submit this application in a timely manner may delay approval or result in

the denial of the application. Submission of the application does not guarantee an approval. The

City may require conditions on the approval of any application.

2. The applicant must comply with all local and applicable state laws and policies. The Applicant

acknowledges that approval of the special event does not relieve the applicant from meeting

any requirements of law or those of other bodies or agencies applicable to the event.

3. The Applicant agrees to clean up and restore the area in the condition it was found prior to the

event. The City is not responsible for equipment or personal items left on public property.

4. The Applicant acknowledges that they shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant

for employment because race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, or any other

applicable status protected by federal, state, or local law. The Applicant further agrees that it

will comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1973, as amended, and the Michigan Civil Rights Act of

1976 (78. Stat 252 and 1976 PA 453) and will require the same of any consultant or sub-

contractor involved in hosting the event.

5. Upon approval of the event, the Applicant agrees to fully defend, indemnify and hold harmless

the City, its City Council, its officers, employees, agents, volunteers, and contractors from any

and all claims, demands, losses, obligations, costs, expenses, verdicts, and settlements (including

but not limited to attorney fees and interest) resulting from any act or omission by the

applicant, its agents, employees, contractors, and volunteers, and violation of state or federal

law, and any other acts of the applicant or attendees causing personal injury or property

damages in connection with this event.

6. A breach in any of the above may result in the denial of the application or revocation of an

approval by the City.

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name of Applicant & Name of Organization  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature          Date 

Tracy Baker/Down Town Business Team

Tracy Baker dotloop verified
03/31/25 4:03 PM EDT
UMST-VE18-Q56B-I5UB 03/31/2025

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/ZxMB-qxoT-yEGV

https://dtlp.us/ZxMB-qxoT-yEGV
https://dtlp.us/ZxMB-qxoT-yEGV


Page 5 of 5 
 

Section 6: City Review – For Office Use Only  

 

A. Police Department Review: 

Will this event require additional officers and/or equipment?  If yes, please describe:  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Other Comments:  

B. Public Services Director Review 

Will this event require the use of any of the following municipal equipment? 

___Trash receptacles     ___Barricades         ___Traffic cones        ___Restroom Cleaning 

___Fencing                       ___Water or Electric               ___Other 

  

Will this event require additional staff? If yes, please describe:  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other Comments:  

 

C. Fire Chief Review 

Comments: 

 

 

D. Community Development Department Review 

Comments: 

 

 

 

Date of Meeting for Council Approval _____________  Approved?  ____ Yes  _____ No 

No

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/ZxMB-qxoT-yEGV

https://dtlp.us/ZxMB-qxoT-yEGV








Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Resolution 2025-10 Notice of Intent to Issue Bonds 

Meeting Date: April 14, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve Resolution 2025-10, Notice of Intent to Issue Bonds. 

Background Information:  

This notice is required to initiate the bonding process for financing the Green and Market Street 

project. The purpose is to provide legal notice of the City’s intent to issue bonds in an amount 

that cannot exceed $8.5 million. Importantly – the project is estimated to cost $7.3 million. 

However, this Resolution sets a not-to-exceed amount so we have set it higher than what we 

anticipate to allow us some flexibility in the event bids come in high or there are project 

changes that necessitate spending more than we are anticipating at this time.  

We are not obligated to issue bonds as a result of this notice. However, we cannot bond 

without this notice having been published.  

Financial Implications:  

None. 

Attachments: 

 Resolution 2025-10

10J



 

RESOLUTION 2025-10 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF INTENT TO 
ISSUE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS 

 

 At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hastings, Barry County, 

Michigan, held on April 14, 2025. 

 

PRESENT: _________________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: _________________________________________________________________ 

 

 The following resolution was offered by _________________________ and seconded by 

_________________________: 

 WHEREAS, the City of Hastings (the "City") proposes to issue its capital improvement 

bonds (the "Bonds") in one or more series to defray the cost of improvements along Fish 

Hatchery Park to Broadway Street on Green and from Green to State on Market Street, within 

the City, including but not limited to (i) resurfacing of such roads; (ii) construction of a mini 

roundabout at the intersection of Green and Market; (iii) lead service line replacements, storm, 

and sanitary sewer replacement on Green and Market; (iv) water main replacement on Market 

Street; and (v) acquiring and constructing any and all other related appurtenances and site 

improvements within, or immediately adjacent to, the road right of way.  

 WHEREAS, prior to issuing the Bonds, the City is required to publish a notice of intent 

to issue the Bonds pursuant to Section 517(2) of Act 34, Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as 

amended. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hastings, 

Barry County, Michigan, as follows: 



 
 

4893-8605-2702 v1 [60854-529] 

1. The maximum principal amount of Bonds expected to be issued for the Project 

is $8,500,000. 

2. The Bonds shall be authorized by proper proceedings subsequent to this 

resolution. 

3. The City Clerk is hereby instructed to publish the notice attached hereto once in a 

newspaper of general circulation in the City, which notice shall not be less than ¼ page in size in 

such newspaper. 

4. The firm of Dickinson Wright PLLC is hereby appointed as bond counsel to the 

City and MCFI is hereby appointed as the City’s registered municipal advisor in connection with 

the issuance of the Bonds. 

5. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they may be in conflict herewith 

are hereby rescinded. 

YEAS:  __________________________________________________________________ 

NAYS: __________________________________________________________________ 

 



 
 

4893-8605-2702 v1 [60854-529] 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
 )ss 
COUNTY OF BARRY ) 
 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a 

regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hastings, Barry County, Michigan, held on 

April 14, 2025, the original of which is on file in my office.  I further certify that notice of said 

meeting was given in accordance with the Open Meetings Act. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature this ___ day of 

_________, 2025. 
         
  Linda Perin, Clerk 

City of Hastings



 

4893-8605-2702 v1 [60854-529] 

 

Note: This notice must be not less than ¼ page in size in the newspaper. 
 
 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE BONDS 
BY THE CITY OF HASTINGS, MICHIGAN 

 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Hastings, Barry County, Michigan, 

intends to issue capital improvement bonds in one or more series in the aggregate principal 

amount of not to exceed $8,500,000 for the purpose of defraying all or part of the costs of 

improvements along Fish Hatchery Park to Broadway Street on Green and from Green to State 

on Market Street, within the City, including but not limited to (i) resurfacing of such roads; (ii) 

construction of a mini roundabout at the intersection of Green and Market; (iii) lead service line 

replacements, storm, and sanitary sewer replacement on Green and Market; (iv) water main 

replacement on Market Street; and (v) acquiring and constructing any and all other related 

appurtenances and site improvements within or immediately adjacent to the road right of way. 

 The bonds will bear interest from their date at a rate or rates to be determined upon the 

sale thereof but in no event to exceed such rates as may be permitted by law. 

 The bonds will be issued under, and pursuant to, the provisions of Act No. 34, Public 

Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended, and the full faith and credit of the City of Hastings will be 

pledged to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds as the same shall become due. The City 

of Hastings will be obligated, as a first budget obligation, to advance moneys from its general 

funds or to levy ad valorem taxes on all taxable property within its corporate boundaries to pay 

the principal of and interest on the bonds as the same shall become due; provided, however, that 

the amount of taxes necessary to pay the principal and interest on the bonds, together with the 

taxes levied for the same year, shall not exceed the limits authorized by law.   



 
 

4893-8605-2702 v1 [60854-529] 

 

RIGHT TO PETITION FOR REFERENDUM 
 

 This notice is given, by order of the City Council of the City of Hastings, to and for the 

benefit of the electors of the City of Hastings in order to inform them of their right to petition for 

a referendum upon the question of the issuance of the aforesaid bonds.  The bonds will be issued, 

without submitting such a question to a vote of the electors, unless within 45 days after the date 

of publication of this notice a petition requesting a referendum upon such question, signed by not 

less than 10% or 15,000 of the registered electors residing within the City of Hastings, whichever 

is the lesser, shall have been filed with the undersigned City Clerk.  In the event that such a 

petition is filed, the bonds will not be issued unless and until the issuance thereof shall have been 

approved by the vote of a majority of the electors of the City of Hastings qualified to vote and 

voting thereon at a general or special election. 

FURTHER INFORMATION 
 
 Further information relative to the issuance of said bonds and the subject matter of this 

notice may be secured at the office of the City Clerk of the City of Hastings, 201 E State Street, 

Hastings, Michigan 49058. 

 This notice is given pursuant to the provisions of Act 34, Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, 

as amended. 

 Linda Perin, Clerk 
       City of Hastings 
 
 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Resolution 2025-11 to Appoint Rob Neil as Street Administrator 

Meeting Date: April 14, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-11 to designate Rob Neil, Street Superintendent, as the City 

of Hastings Street Administrator.  

Background Information:  

MDOT requires that we designate a street administrator to validate and authorize our annual 

Act 51 map and participate in construction reporting. Travis Tate previously served as the 

administrator so the position needs to be replaced.  

Financial Implications:  

We are required to have a street administrator designated to receive Act 51 road funding.  

Attachments: 

 Resolution 2025-11

10K



---------------------------------------

Michigan Department RESOLUTION FOR DESIGNATION of Transportation 
2012 (08/19) 

OF STREET ADMINISTRATOR 

This information is required by Act 51, P.A. 1951 as amended. Failure 

to supply this information will result in funds being withheld. 

MAIL TO: Michigan Department of Transportation, Financial Operations 
Division, P.O. Box 30050, Lansing, Ml 48909. 
or Fax to: (517) 335-1828 

NOTE: Indicate, if possible, where Street Administrator can usually be reached during normal 
working hours, if different than City or Village Office. List any other office held by the Administrator. 

Councilperson or Commissioner

offered the following resolution and moved its adoption: 

Whereas, Section 13(9) of Act 51, Public Acts of 1951 provided that each incorporated city and village to which 

funds are returned under the provisions of this section, that, "the responsibility for street improvements, 

maintenance, and traffic operations work, and the development, construction, or repair of off-street parking facilities 

and construction or repair of street lighting shall be coordinated by a single administrator to be designated by the 

governing body who shall be responsible for and shall represent the municipality in transactions with the State 

Transportation Department pursuant to this act." 

Therefore, be it resolved, that this Honorable Body designate ___________________ 

_____________________ as the single Street Administrator for the City or Village of 

____________________ in all transactions with the State Transportation Department 

as provided in Section 13 of the Act. 

Supported by the Councilperson or Commissioner 
-----------------------

Yeas 

Nays---------------------------------------

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution made and adopted at a regular meeting 

of the governing body of this municipality on the _____________________ day of 

CITY OR VILLAGE CLERK (SIGNATURE) E-MAIL ADDRESS DATE 

STREET ADMINISTRATOR (SIGNATURE) E-MAIL ADDRESS DATE 

ADDRESS OF CITY OR VILLAGE OFFICE P.O.BOX 

CITY OR VILLAGE ZIP CODE 
I 

PHONE NUMBER 

Resolution 2025-11



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Action to Merge Divisions HC into Division HB of the MERS Hybrid Plan 

Meeting Date: April 14, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to authorize the merger of Division HC into Division HB of the City of Hastings MERS 

Hybrid plan.  

Background Information:  

Division HC is the hybrid plan for full-time fire union employees hired after July 2007. The union 

disbanded without anyone ever enrolling in this division. New full-time fire employees have 

been enrolled in the general employee HB plan. There is no reason to leave the HC plan open 

because no one qualifies for enrollment.  

Financial Implications:  

None. 

Attachments: 

 Revised hybrid adoption agreement

10L



Form MD-370 (version 2022-08-09) Page 1 of 8

www.mersofmich.com1134 Municipal Way Lansing, MI 48917 | 800.767.6377 | Fax 517.703.9707

MERS Hybrid Plan Adoption Agreement

The Employer, a participating municipality or participating court within the State of Michigan that has adopted 
MERS coverage, hereby establishes the following MERS Hybrid Plan provided by MERS of Michigan, as 
authorized by 1996 PA 220 in accordance with the MERS Plan Document, as both may be amended, subject 
to the terms and conditions herein.

I. Employer Name ____________________________________________________  Municipality #: _____________

If new to MERS, provide your municipality’s/court’s fiscal year: _____________ through _____________.

II. Effective Date
Check one:

A.    If this is the initial Adoption Agreement for this group, the effective date shall be the first day

           of ______________, 20___. 

  This municipality or division is new to MERS, so vesting credit prior to the initial MERS 
effective date by each eligible employee shall be credited as follows (choose one):

   Vesting credit from date of hire        No vesting credit

   This division is for new hires, rehires, and transfers of current Defined Benefit* division 
#___________ and/or current Defined Contribution division #___________

   Closing this division will change future invoices to a flat dollar amount instead of a percentage  
  of payroll, as provided in your most recent annual actuarial valuation. (The amount may be  
  adjusted for any benefit modifications that may have taken place since then.)

Current active (Defined Benefit or Defined Contribution) employees (select one of the following 
and see Plan Document, Section 70 for more information):

   Will have a one-time opportunity to convert the value of their current Defined Benefit 
into a lump sum transferred to the Defined Contribution portion of Hybrid sum, or 
continue accruing service in the Defined Benefit (complete MERS Hybrid Conversion 
Addendum.) 

   Will have a one-time opportunity to cease service accrual in the current plan and 
transfer to the new Hybrid Plan for future service accrual, or continue accruing 
service in the Defined Benefit. The deadline for employees to make their election is: 
___/___/______ 

   Will be required to cease service accrual in Defined Benefit and will transfer to Hybrid 
for future service accrual. 

* By completing the section above, the Employer acknowledges receiving Projection Study (if applicable) results and understands 
the municipality’s obligation to continue funding the liability associated with the closed Defined Benefit division.

B.    If this is an amendment of an existing Adoption Agreement (Hybrid division #_____________), the 

       effective date shall be the first day of __________________, 20_____. Please note: You only 

 need to mark changes to your plan throughout the remainder of this Agreement.

(Month) (Month)

https://employerportal.mersofmich.com/SharePointFormsService/Default.aspx?Publication=457_PlanDocument.pdf


Form MD-370 (version 2022-08-09) Page 2 of 8

MERS Hybrid Plan Adoption Agreement

C.    If this is to separate employees from an existing Hybrid division 

      (existing division number(s) _____________________________) 

      into a new Hybrid division, the effective date shall be the first day of ________________, 20_____.

D.    If this is to merge division(s) _____________________ into division(s) ____________________, the 
effective date shall be the first of ___________________, 20____.

E.    If this is an amendment to close Defined Benefit division(s) #_______________ or Hybrid 
division(s) _______________ with new hires, rehires, and transfers going into an existing Hybrid 
division # ____________, the effective date shall be _____________ (month/year). 

 Note: Closing this Defined Benefit division(s) will change future invoices to a flat dollar 
amount instead of a percentage of payroll, as provided in your most recent annual actuarial 
valuation. 

 (The amount may be adjusted for any benefit modifications that may have taken place since then). 

III. Plan Eligibility

Division Title: ___________________________________________________

Only those employees eligible for MERS membership may participate in the Hybrid Plan. If an employee 
classification is included in the plan, then employees that meet this definition will receive service credit if 
they work the required number of hours to meet the specified service credit qualification and are required 
to contribute to both the Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution portions of Hybrid as defined below. 
All eligible employees must be enrolled in the plan. Please describe the specific classifications that are 
eligible for MERS within this division: 

___________________________________________________________________________________________

This Division includes public safety employees (this information is used for actuarial purposes only. It does 
not relate to the additional tax for early distribution):       Yes         No

(For example: e.g., Full-time employees, Clerical staff, Union Employees participating in XXXX union)

klajoie
Highlight



Form MD-370 (version 2022-08-09) Page 3 of 8

MERS Hybrid Plan Adoption Agreement

To further define eligibility (select all that apply):

Probationary Periods (select one):

 Service will begin after the probationary period has been satisfied. Probationary periods are allowed in 
one-month increments, no longer than 12 months. During this probationary period, the employer will 
not report or provide service.

 The probationary period will be ______ month(s).
 Comments:

 Service will begin with the employee’s date of hire (no Probationary Period). Effective with the date of 
hire, wages paid and any associated contributions must be submitted to MERS.

IV. Provisions

1. Service Credit Qualification (for Defined Benefit portion of Hybrid)
To clarify how eligible employees earn service credit, please indicate how many hours per month an eligible employee 
needs to work. For example, if you require 10 eight-hour days, this would be 80 hours per month. If an ‘hour per day’ 
has been defined (like ten 7-hour days), electing 70 hours will be required. Employees must meet the definition of Plan 
Eligibility and service credit qualification in order to earn service credit under the plan. 

To receive one month of service credit, an employee shall work (or be paid for as if working) 
_________ hours in a month.

Note: For purposes of Defined Contribution, vesting is determined by elapsed time or hours reported.

If you elect to include a special classification (chart below), then the employee will be required to meet 
the Service Credit Qualification under the Defined Benefit portion of Hybrid as defined under section IV 
(Provisions) in order to earn a month of service. Excluded classifications will require additional information 
below. For Defined Contribution portion of Hybrid, vesting is determined according to elapsed time (or 
hours reported, if applicable).

Employee Classification Included Excluded
Not 

Employed
Temporary Employees: Those who will work for the municipality fewer than _____ 
months in total

Part-Time Employees: Those who regularly work fewer than _______ per _______

Seasonal Employees: Those who are employed for tasks that occur at specific times of 
the year

Voter-Elected Officials

Appointed Officials: An official appointed to a voter-elected office

Contract Employees

Other: ___________________________________________________

Other 2: ___________________________________________________



Form MD-370 (version 2022-08-09) Page 4 of 8

MERS Hybrid Plan Adoption Agreement

2. Leaves of Absence (for Defined Benefit portion of Hybrid)
Indicate in the chart below, whether the potential for service credit will be allowed if an eligible employee is on 
one of the following types of leave, regardless of meeting the service credit qualification criteria.  
Regardless whether an eligible employee is awarded service credit while on the selected type(s) of leave:

• MERS will skip over these months when determining the FAC amount for benefit calculations.
• Third-party wages are not reported for leaves of absence.
• Employers are not required to remit employer contributions based on leaves of absence when no 

wages are paid by the employer.
• For contributory divisions, employee contributions are required where service credit is granted 

and due at the time of monthly wage and contribution reporting. Employers may use the following 
formula to calculate employee contributions: the employee’s current hourly rate (prior to leave), 
multiplied by service credit qualification (hours) multiplied by employee contribution. For example, 
if employees’ hourly rate is $20, the division requires 120 hours to obtain service credit, and 
employee contributions are 5%, the calculation will look like: $20/hour X 120 X .05 = $120 in 
employee contribution for that leave month. Employers may use another internal formula, if they 
choose and MERS will make note of it. 

If an alternative formula is going to be used, please describe that here:

Note: For the Defined Contribution portion of Hybrid service is not “granted” or “excluded” as elapsed time (or 
accumulated hours) are used to determine vesting. Contributions will be due only for months where wages are paid.

Type of Leave Service Credit 
Granted

Service Credit 
Excluded

Short-Term Disability

Long-Term Disability

Workers’ Compensation

Unpaid Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

Other: _________________________________________________________
For example, sick and accident, administrative, educational, sabbatical, etc.

Other 2: _______________________________________________________
Additional leave types as above

Leaves of absence due to military service are governed by the Federal Uniformed Services Employment 
and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA), IRC 414(u), effective January 1, 2007, IRC 401(a)(37). 
Military reporting requires historical wage and contribution reporting for Defined Benefit as applicable.

3. Definition of Compensation
The Definition of Compensation is used to calculate a participant’s final average compensation and is 
used in determining both employer and employee contributions. Wages paid to employees, calculated 
using the elected definition, must be reported to MERS. 

Select your Definition of Compensation: 

 Base Wages      Box 1 Wages of W-2     Gross Wages

 Custom Definition  
     (To customize your definition, please complete the Custom Definition of Compensation Addendum.)

Click here to view details of Base, 
Box 1, and Gross Wages

https://resources.mersofmich.com/SharepointFormsService/Default.aspx?FormName=ME-008_Addendum_CustomDefinitionCompensation.pdf
https://resources.mersofmich.com/SharepointFormsService/Default.aspx?FormName=DefinitionOfCompensation_Standard.pdf


Form MD-370 (version 2022-08-09) Page 5 of 8

MERS Hybrid Plan Adoption Agreement

4. Employer Caps

The Employer hereby elects to cap the annual contribution to Hybrid (total amount for both Defined 
Benefit and Defined Contribution portions) to _____% of payroll. The employer will adjust its 
contribution to the DC portion of the plan based on the required contribution for the DB portion. 
An employee contribution will become required on the DB portion of the plan if the total employer 
contribution DB + DC portions has exceeded the cap with no employer contribution to the DC portion.

The Employer hereby elects to cap the annual contribution to the Defined Benefit portion of Hybrid 

to ____% of payroll. An employee contribution will become required on the DB portion of the plan 
if the required employer contribution for the DB portion of the plan has exceeded the set cap 
(regardless of the employer contribution to the DC portion of the plan).

No Employer Cap

Hybrid – Defined Benefit Component Provisions

The Defined Benefit Provisions, once adopted, are irrevocable and shall not be later changed except for 
definition of compensation except for definition of compensation and early out provision.

Valuation Date: _________________________ , 20_____

1. This Adoption Agreement will be implemented in conjunction with a current actuarial valuation certified
by a MERS actuary or normal cost calculation created by MERS that sets contribution rates.

2. Annually, the MERS actuary will conduct an actuarial valuation to determine the employer’s contribution
rates for the Defined Benefit portion of Hybrid. Employers are responsible for payment of said
contributions at the rate, in the form and at the time that MERS determines.

3. Benefit Multiplier
The multiplier shall be one of the following dependent upon the division’s Social Security status:

Social Security Coverage

1.00%

1.25%

1.50%

No Social Security Coverage

1.00%

1.25%

1.50%

1.75%

2.00%

4. Final Average Compensation (FAC) shall be based on the highest consecutive 3 years

5. Vesting shall be 6 years

6. Normal DB Retirement Age: _______ (any age from 60 – 70)

7. Early Normal Retirement with unreduced benefits at age: _______ (may be any number from 55-65 with
25 years of service)

10



Form MD-370 (version 2022-08-09) Page 6 of 8

MERS Hybrid Plan Adoption Agreement

Hybrid - Defined Contribution Component Provisions 

1. Vesting (for Defined Contribution portion) 
Vesting will be credited using (check one):

 Elapsed time method – Employees will be credited with one vesting year for each 12 months of 
continuous employment from the date of hire through date of termination.

 Hours reported method – Employees will be credited with one vesting year for each calendar 
year in which _____ hours are worked

Vesting schedule will be (check one):
 Immediate

 Cliff vesting (fully vested after a specified number of years, not to exceed 10 years)  
will be ___ years.

 Graded Vesting (the % of vesting acquired after employment for the designated number of 
years, not to exceed 10 years)

2. Contributions (for Defined Contribution portion)
a. Contributions will be submitted (check one):

Contributions will be remitted according to Employer’s “Payroll Period” which represents the 
actual period amounts are withheld from participant paychecks, or within the month during which 
amounts are withheld.

 Weekly
 Bi-Weekly (every other week)

b. Employer Contributions
 Required Employer and Employee Contributions are outlined using associated Contribution 

Addendum for MERS Defined Contribution (MD-073).

c. Post-tax voluntary employee contributions are allowable into a Defined Contribution account 
subject to Section 415(c) limitations of the Internal Revenue Code.

3. Loans:   shall be permitted   shall not be permitted
If Loans are elected, please refer to the Defined Contribution & 457 Loan Addendum.

 Semi-Monthly (twice each month)
 Monthly

In the event of disability or death, an employee’s (or his/her beneficiary’s) entire employer contribution account 
shall be 100% vested, to the extent that the balance of such account has not previously been forfeited.

Normal DC Retirement Age (presumed to be age 60 unless otherwise specified) __________
If an employee is still employed with the municipality at the age specified here, their entire employer 
contribution balance will become 100% vested regardless of years of service.

% Vested Years of Service

https://resources.mersofmich.com/SharepointFormsService/Default.aspx?FormName=MD-073_DCemployerContribution.pdf
https://resources.mersofmich.com/SharepointFormsService/Default.aspx?FormName=MD-073_DCemployerContribution.pdf
https://resources.mersofmich.com/SharepointFormsService/Default.aspx?FormName=MD-071_LoanAddendum.pdf


Form MD-370 (version 2022-08-09) Page 7 of 8

MERS Hybrid Plan Adoption Agreement

V. Appointing MERS as the Plan Administrator

The Employer hereby agrees to the provisions of this MERS Hybrid Plan Adoption Agreement and 
appoints MERS as the Plan Administrator pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Plan. The 
Employer also agrees that in the event of any conflict between the MERS Plan Document and the 
MERS Hybrid Plan Adoption Agreement, the provisions of the Plan Document control.

VI. Modification of the terms of the Adoption Agreement

If the Employer desires to amend any of its elections contained in this Adoption Agreement, including 
attachments, the Governing Body or Chief Judge, by resolution or official action accepted by MERS, 
must adopt a new Adoption Agreement. The amendment of this Agreement is not effective until 
approved by MERS.

VII. Enforcement

1. The Employer acknowledges that the Michigan Constitution of 1963, Article 9, Section 24, provides that 
accrued financial benefits arising under a public Employer’s retirement plan are a contractual obligation 
of the Employer that may not be diminished or impaired, and prohibits the use of the Employer’s 
required current service funding to finance unfunded accrued liabilities.

2. The Employer agrees that, pursuant to the Michigan Constitution, its obligations to pay required 
contributions are contractual obligations to its employees and to MERS and may be enforced in a court 
of competent jurisdiction;

3. In accordance with the Constitution and this Agreement, if at any time the balance standing to the 
Employer’s credit in the reserve for employer contributions and DB benefit payments is insufficient 
to pay all service benefits due and payable to the entity’s retirees and beneficiaries, the Employer 
agrees and covenants to promptly remit to MERS the amount of such deficiency as determined by the 
Retirement Board within thirty (30) days notice of such deficiency;

4. The Employer acknowledges that the DB wage and service reports are due monthly, and the employee 
contributions (if any) and Employer contributions are due and payable monthly, and must be submitted 
in accordance with the MERS Enforcement Procedure for Prompt Reporting and Payment, the terms of 
which are incorporated herein by reference;

5. The Employer acknowledges that employee contributions (if any) and employer contributions must be 
submitted in accordance with the MERS Enforcement Procedure for Prompt Reporting and Payment, 
the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference;

6. The Employer acknowledges that late or missed contributions will be required to be made up, including 
any applicable gains for the Defined Contribution portion of Hybrid, pursuant to the Internal Revenue 
Code;

4. Rollovers from qualified plans are permitted and the plan will account separately for pre-tax and  
post-tax contributions and earnings thereon. 

5. Forfeiture (for Defined Contribution portion) 

A forfeiture occurs when a participant separates from employment prior to meeting the associated 
elapsed time (or hours reported) to receive vesting. The percentage of his/her employer contribution 
account balance that has not vested as of the date of termination will forfeit after 12 consecutive 
months following the termination date reported by the employer, or earlier, if the System distributes the 
participant’s vested portion. MERS will utilize an available forfeiture balance as an automatic funding 
source applied to reported employer contributions at the time of reporting. 



Form MD-370 (version 2022-08-09) Page 8 of 8

MERS Hybrid Plan Adoption Agreement

Authorized Signature: ______________________________________________________________________

Printed Name: _____________________________________________________________________________

Title: ______________________________________________________________________________________

 Date: __________________

Received and Approved by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan 

Dated:  __________________________ , 20 _____  Signature: _______________________________________

VIII.   Execution:

Authorized Designee of Governing Body of Municipality or Chief Judge of Court

This foregoing Addendum is hereby approved by

at a Board Meeting which took place on: __________________
(mm/dd/yyyy)

(mm/dd/yyyy)

7. Should the Employer fail to make its required contribution(s) when due, the retirement benefits due and 
payable by MERS on behalf of the entity to its retirees and beneficiaries may be suspended until the 
delinquent payment is received by MERS. MERS may implement any applicable interest charges and 
penalties pursuant to the MERS Enforcement Procedure for Prompt Reporting and Payment and Plan 
Document Section 79, and take any appropriate legal action, including but not limited to filing a lawsuit 
and reporting the entity to the Treasurer of the State of Michigan in accordance with MCL 141.1544(d), 
Section 44 of PA 436 of 2012, as may be amended;

8. It is expressly agreed and understood as an integral and non-severable part of this Agreement 
that Section 43 of the Plan Document shall not apply to this Agreement and its administration or 
interpretation. In the event any alteration of the terms or conditions of this Agreement is made or 
occurs, under Section 43 or other plan provision or law, MERS and the Retirement Board, as sole 
trustee and fiduciary of the MERS plan and its trust reserves, and whose authority is non-delegable, 
shall have no obligation or duty to administer (or to have administered) the Hybrid Plan, to authorize 
the transfer of any assets to the Hybrid Plan, or to continue administration by MERS or any third-party 
administrator of the Hybrid Plan.

(Authorized MERS Signatory)

klajoie
Highlight

klajoie
Highlight

klajoie
Highlight

klajoie
Highlight

klajoie
Highlight



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Mayor Tossava and City Council 

From: Dan King 

Subject: Very Barry Family Event 

Meeting Date: April 14, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve, under the direction of staff, the 14th annual Very Barry Family Event to be 

held in Tyden Park on Saturday, June 7, 2025, from 9:00 a.m. until noon. The request includes 

the use of the entire park and both pavilions. 

Background Information:  

This event focuses on services for early childhood which includes birth to eight years old and 

their families. Sponsored by local organizations, this is a free event to attend. Tyden Park has 

proven to be a fantastic venue for this event. 

Financial Implications:  

There are no significant financial implications to the City. 

Attachments: 

 Very Barry Family Event Planning Committee Request Letter

 Special Event Application

10M



















Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Mayor Tossava and City Council 

From: Dan King 

Subject:  Schedule Bachman Field Planned Unit Development and Final Site Plan Review Public 

Hearing 

Meeting Date: April 14, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to schedule a public hearing for the May 12, 2025, City Council meeting for approval of 

the final Planned Unit Development (PUD) and site plan application for Bachman Field for the 

development of 119 site condominium lots for detached single family home construction at 900 

Bachman Rd. 

Background Information:  

The Hastings Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on Monday April 7, 2025, for 

consideration of the Bachman Field PUD and final development plan. The Planning Commission 

approved the PUD and final development plan with minor revisions and in accordance with 

Section 90-668 Standards for Approval, are recommending the PUD and final development plan 

to City Council for approval. In accordance with Section 90-670, the City Council shall conduct a 

public hearing for final PUD and development plan approval. 

Financial Implications: There are no direct financial implications from this request. 

Attachments: Public hearing notice 

10N



City of Hastings 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
REGARDING BACHMAN FIELD PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT AND FINAL SITE PLAN APPROVAL 
 
The City Council for the City of Hastings will hold a Public Hearing for 
the purpose of hearing written and/or oral comments from the public 
concerning Bachman Field Planned Unit Development and final site plan 
approval for property located at 900 Bachman Rd. parcel #08-55-135-001-
02. The City Council will review and consider final site plan approval for 
the development and construction of 119 detached residential site 
condominiums. The public hearing will be held at 7:00 PM on Monday May 
12, 2025, in the City Council Chambers on the second floor of City Hall, 201 
East State Street, Hastings, Michigan 49058.  

 
 

A copy of the proposed site plan and map are available for public inspection 
from 9:00 AM to 4:00 PM Monday through Friday at the Office of the 
Community Development Director, 201 East State Street, Hastings, Michigan 
49058.  Questions or comments can be directed to Sandy Ponsetto, 
Administrative Specialist, at 269.945.2468 or sponsetto@hastingsmi.gov. 

 
The City will provide necessary reasonable aids and services upon five days’ 
notice to the City Clerk at 269.945.2468 or TDD call relay services 
800.649.3777.  

Linda Perin 
City Clerk 



Please publish in the April 24, 2025 edition of the Hastings Banner. 
 
Received by ____________________ on ________________ as 
representative of the Hastings Banner.  
 
 
Received by ___________________ on _______________ as representative 
of the Hastings Banner. 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Amendment to Contract with Mercy Ambulance 

Meeting Date: April 14, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to authorize an amendment to the contract with Mercy Ambulance to pay $7,792 

monthly for ambulance services effective May 2025 through the end of the contract term.   

Background Information:  

The City, along with Carlton Twp, Hastings Twp, Rutland Twp, Baltimore Twp, and Hope Twp 

have an agreement for ambulance service with Mercy Ambulance. The contract runs through 

the end of 2026. Historically, the municipal participants have not needed to supply direct funds 

to support the service other than a contribution toward capital expenses in July 2023, totaling 

$49,228.72 from the City. The ambulance service has operated on funds received by billing 

those who use its service.  

In 2023, Mercy made it known that they would likely need financial support again in the future, 

but not immediately. Cost for operations have increased, and wages have climbed significantly 

in a brief time, making ongoing service a challenge. When the ambulance service has a decline 

in availability, there is a direct impact on the City and BIRCH fire because we have to respond 

more, which increases our costs. Mercy represents that it lacks profitability and is requesting 

additional funds to be able to continue service. In addition, they are exploring modifications to 

their service delivery model in concert with our fire department to improve service while 

keeping costs contained.  

Mercy is requesting $274,992 annually to be contributed on a monthly basis, depending on the 

population. The portion to be paid by the City is $93,492 per year ($7,792/mo). It is my 

understanding that Baltimore Township, Hastings Charter Township, and Hope Township have 

voted to contribute funds. Carlton Township is in discussion about it, and Rutland Township 

recently decided to transition to service from Thornapple Township. I have been assured by 

10O



 
 

Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

Rodney Palmer that in the event any of the currently participating townships choose not to 

contribute funding, the request for funding from the City will not be increased.  

Many ambulance services require municipal subsidies; others do not. It is difficult to make an 

apples-to-apples comparison of one service to another because there are many variables that 

impact the cost and reliability of service. We do not presently have firm alternatives for 

ambulance service. We have over 7,500 residents inclusive of multiple senior housing and 

rehab centers and the hospital to consider. We need ambulances stationed here in the city.   

With that being emphasized, it would still be prudent and responsible to review potential 

options for ambulance service in the future. Whether we make a future change or not would 

depend on what we find about alternatives and what Mercy Ambulance decides to do moving 

forward. For now, my recommendation is to financially contribute to Mercy Ambulance as 

requested through the end of the contract term. In concert with that action, we can review 

alternatives, hopefully with the support and cooperation of the other participating townships. 

The following agenda item contains more information about that option.  

Joe Huebner from Mercy Ambulance will be at the meeting to explain the request and answer 

questions from the Council. Fire Chief Jordan will also be available for questions about fire 

department impacts.   

 

Financial Implications:  

Funding is available in the budget to cover this expense for the remainder of this fiscal year. We 

will need to budget appropriately for next fiscal year.  

 

Attachments: 

 Mercy Ambulance Request Letter 

 Mercy Service Cost and Revenue Report 

 Existing Agreement for Service with Mercy Ambulance 









 Mercy Ambulance Service Revenue and 
Cost Report with Forecasting 
For Ongoing Ambulance Service for Contracted Municipalities 

2/24/2025 

Introduction 
This report provides a comprehensive analysis of the revenue and costs associated with 
ambulance services in our contracting municipalities in the City of Hastings and BIRCH 
service area. By examining historical data and utilizing basic forecasting techniques, we 
aim to offer a clear financial outlook and strategic recommendations. 

Historical Revenue and Cost Analysis 

Revenue Sources 
Ambulance service revenue primarily comes from: 

• Service fees charged to patients and insurance companies 
• Government funding and grants 
• Municipal contracts and subsidies 

Operating Costs 
The main categories of operating costs include: 

• Salaries and benefits 
• Vehicle maintenance and fuel 
• Medical supplies and equipment 
• Training and certifications 

 
 

 
 



Historical Financial Performance 
Over the past two years, our ambulance service has seen varying levels of revenue and 
costs. Below is an average summary of the financial performance: 

• 2023: Net Revenue: $1.2 million, Costs: $1.2million, Surplus: $0.0 million 
• 2024: Net Revenue: $1.2 million, Costs: $1.3 million, Deficit  

Wage comparison for Paramedics in 2023 and 2024 considering two full-time ambulances: 

• 2022: 330,000 (not including benefits) 
• 2024: 375,000 (not including benefits) 
• That is a 22 % increase in one year 
• Looking at the end of our existing contract it could increase to an 8 to 10 percent 

increase each year. 
• Wages for all levels have increased industry wide. 

Wage comparison for EMTs in 2023 and 2024 considering two full-time ambulances: 

• 2023: $210,000 (not including benefits) 
• 2024: $255,000 (not including benefits) 

Summary total is we are spending more than half of our revenue source on wages costing a 
minimum of $630,000 per year to operate two fully staffed ambulances. We have yet to see 
a stabilization to these wage increases. 

• 2024 Expenses: $670,000 Vehicle maintenance and fuel, medical supplies and 
equipment, administrative expenses, Dispatchers, Training and certifications 

• This leaves a deficit of $100,000 in 2024. 

Ambulance Cost Recap 

2024 Wages per staffed ALS ambulance $315,000 

2025 Expected Wages per staffed ALS ambulance $348,000 

That is a 10% increase in one year to retain and recruit qualified technicians. 

Assuming the cost of operating stays at the rate of inflation 3% annually 2025 cost will be 
$680,000 and labor at 696,000 leaving a total cost of operation at $1,376,000 per 2025 year. 

Mercy can capture a minimum of $1.2 million in net user pay dollars plus $279,000 tax 
money supply totals $1,479,000 

 



Revenue $1,479,000 

Cost  $1,376,000 

Profit  $103,000 or %7 (estimated net.) 

These financial numbers could all change up or down, but we know that our stated need 
allows for financial stability with incentives to continue to operate and deliver excellent 
services for our contracted areas. Mercy has at best been a loss and a breakeven point 
since 2023. User fee monies are not keeping pace with the cost of operations.  

 

Why continue to use Mercy? 

• Mercy has no long-term debt obligations. 
• We control the buildings we operate from and pay property taxes. 
• Mercy’s staff consists of most residents. 
• Mercy has its own dispatch to operate in cooperation with 911 Centers 
• We are confident that we are your best option to continue at a high level at a 

lower cost outlay to your communities. 

 

Monthly financial recap: 

City of Hastings  $7,792/MO 

Baltimore Twp  $1,833/MO 

Rutland Twp   $4,354/MO 

Carlton Twp   $2,520/MO 

Hastings Twp   $3,200/MO 

Hope Twp   $3,208/MO2/24/2025 

Total Monthly   $22,132/MO 

If accepted and approved this will be an amendment to our current contract which ends 
January 1, 2027. 

 

 

 



Summary: 

Unlike most service businesses we must continue to operate despite the financial slowing 
periods. Mercy Ambulance has consistently provided excellent service to BARRY COUNTY 
residents for 50 years. We need help to continue. Immediate needs for Tax Support will 
supply this necessary money to meet our contractual agreement to supply two 
ambulances. 

 Respectfully submitted, 

Rodney D Palmer 

X
Rodney D Palmer

 

 

Mercy Ambulance Service, Inc – Hastings Division 

 

 

 

 





















Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: McGrath Consulting Agreement  

Meeting Date: April 14, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to accept the proposal from McGrath Consulting to perform an assessment of 

emergency medical services in an amount not to exceed $30,540.  

Background Information: 

I have been working with McGrath Consulting on a proposal to evaluate future EMS service 

options for the City and other areas presently served by Mercy Ambulance. You may remember 

that McGrath performed the fire department evaluation in 2023.  

The assessment is comprehensive in nature; pages 10-15 of the proposal thoroughly describe 

the scope of work and deliverables. Many ideas have been suggested about future service, but 

we need a knowledgeable and effective consultant to help evaluate how reasonable and cost-

effective those options are and what will work best for our community in the long term.  

I have requested the other townships to participate in paying for a portion of the study, which 

has received mixed feedback. Although I believe they should financially contribute since the 

study results will apply to them, we need the information regardless of whether they 

participate.  

Financial Implications:  

We have funding to cover most of this study already budgeted. The study will mostly be done 

next fiscal year so allocated funds will need to be transferred to the new year.  

Attachments: 

 Proposal from McGrath Consulting

10P



for

Submitted By: 
McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. 

March 2025 

Offices 
   Jamestown, TN.    Hanover Park, IL.     Waukesha, WI.     Strongsville, OH. 

City of Hastings 



HASTINGS MI 2 

March 5, 2025 

Sarah Moyer-Cale 
City Manager 
201 E. State St 
Hastings, MI 49058 

Sarah Moyer-Cale, 

McGrath Consulting Group, Inc., is pleased to submit a proposal to conduct a comprehensive assessment 
of Emergency Medical Services (EMS) provided throughout BIRCH Rual Fire Association response district, 
Michigan. The study will evaluate the current EMS system, EMS providers, recognize areas of excellence, 
opportunities for improvements, duplication of services, funding opportunities, and explore partnerships 
of resources to ensure the highest level of EMS within their fiscal capabilities of those who govern.   

McGrath Consulting Group, Inc., utilizes consultants who are highly skilled individuals with both 
educational credentials and work experiences in the areas outlined in this proposal.  Our consultants have 
an extensive understanding of the emergency medical services and utilize proven study methodologies. 
Our project manager will communicate regularly with your designated project team individual to ensure 
a timely response to issues, questions, or requests you might have.  Our project team will remain intact 
during the duration of this project.    

Our firm will partner with our subsidiary company McGrath Human Resources Group to address 
opportunities/issues related to Human Resource matters; inasmuch as the future staffing methodology 
might include volunteer/paid-on-call/residents/career members.  McGrath Human Resources Group 
brings their expertise in dealing with the human element of the project, federal and state compliances, 
and compensation issues.  Our Human Resource division has been involved in past fire/EMS studies since 
the inception of our corporation.   

We understand the importance of this project and look forward to the opportunity of working with the   
Officials of City of Hastings, communities of the BIRCH Rural Fire Association district, and other 
identified stakeholders. We have conducted numerous EMS providers assessments and look forward to 
working with you on this project.  

Sincerely, 

Tim McGrath, Ph.D. 
CEO McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. 



HASTINGS MI 3 

Table of Contents 
Firm Profile ........................................................................................................................................4

Firm Experience......................................................................................................................................... 4
Project Understanding .............................................................................................................................. 4

Project Consulting Team Members .....................................................................................................5
Project Manager / CEO .............................................................................................................................. 5

Dr. Tim McGrath – Project Manager ..................................................................................................... 5
Emergency Medical Services Consultant .................................................................................................. 6

Chief Kevin Edmond – Consulting Team Leader .................................................................................... 6
Chief Robert Lloyd, OFC ......................................................................................................................... 7
Staff Consultant ..................................................................................................................................... 8

Fiscal/Administration Consultant .............................................................................................................. 8
Mr. Harrison – Fiscal Analysis/Administration ...................................................................................... 8

Personnel Management/Human Resources ............................................................................................. 9
Ms. Halvorson Maes – Human Resources Consultant ........................................................................... 9

Project Approach ...............................................................................................................................9
Project Timeline ............................................................................................................................... 10
Study Deliverables ........................................................................................................................... 10

Scope of Study Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 10
Section One: Assessment of Current EMS Service Delivery ................................................................ 10

Objective – Develop Project Work Plan .......................................................................................... 10
Objective – EMS General Overview ................................................................................................ 11
Objective – Current EMS Delivery System/Data ............................................................................. 11
Objective – Staffing ......................................................................................................................... 11
Objective – Financial Overview ....................................................................................................... 11
Objective: Facilities and Equipment ................................................................................................ 12
Objective: Provider’s Apparatus and Vehicles ................................................................................ 12
Objective: Provider’s Medical Equipment ....................................................................................... 12

Section Two: Overview and Analysis of EMS Operations .................................................................... 12
Objective: EMS and Ambulance Transport Review ......................................................................... 12
Objective: Service Delivery and Performance Measures ................................................................ 13
Objective: EMS Service Demands ................................................................................................... 13
Objective: EMS Resource Distribution ............................................................................................ 13
Objective: EMS Reliability ............................................................................................................... 13
Objective: Response Performance Analysis .................................................................................... 13

Section Three: Strategies & Recommendations ................................................................................. 14
Objective: Current Operations, Recommendations, Strategies ...................................................... 14
Objective: Service Costs Assessment Recommendations ............................................................... 14
Objective: Other Considerations& Recommendations ................................................................... 14
Objective: Planning and Implementation of Recommendations .................................................... 14

Study Costs ...................................................................................................................................... 15
References ....................................................................................................................................... 15

Draft Report............................................................................................................................................. 16
Final Report ............................................................................................................................................. 16



HASTINGS MI 4 

Firm Profile 

Firm Experience 
McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. has approximately 600+ clients in 41 states between the Public Safety and 
Human Resources Divisions. Our firm currently employs 27 fulltime or independent contractors to assist 
in projects. The principals of the company have over 50 years of public sector experience. McGrath 
Consulting Group, Inc., has conducted numerous projects of Comprehensive Assessment and Needs 
Analysis Reviews for fire and/or emergency medical services (EMS) organizations.   

Our company prides itself on its innovative recommendations to maximize service in the most fiscally 
sound manner.  We address current and future issues regarding cost-effectiveness and efficiency of 
services/programs, program leadership/management, organizational opportunities to improve services, 
resource needs, exploration of partnerships, revenue generating methods, and alignment of the service 
provider’s operations with the mission and vision of those that govern. 

Project Understanding 
The City of Hastings on behalf of BIRCH Rual Fire Association is seeking an independent professional 
consulting firm to assess/analyze the Emergency Medical Services (EMS) and recommend the future 
delivery service of EMS throughout the BIRCH Rual Fire Association response district. As demand for EMS 
calls increases, staffing shortages, and decreasing profit margins many private and non-profit 
ambulances services are seeking subsides from local governments. Prompting local governments to 
understand and develop strategies for a sustainable EMS delivery service for their communities, 

The consultants will assist governing officials and the service providers to review their current economic 
and service delivery models without sacrificing patient care.  Gaps in the provision of ambulance services 

McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. is an 
organization that specializes in public sector 
consulting predominately in the fields of fire, 
emergency medical services (EMS), law 
enforcement, communications, and human 
resources. The principals of the company have 
over 50 years of public sector experience.  

There are two distinct divisions within the 
corporation: Public Safety – overseen by dr. 
Tim McGrath and Human Resources – 
overseen by Dr. Victoria McGrath. We have 
found that having expertise in human 
resources is beneficial in public safety studies. 
Thus, the Fire/EMS and law enforcement 
consultants have access to experts in human 
resources to address the unique laws and best 
practices governmental entities face with their 
human capital.  

Company Name McGrath Consulting 

Parent 
Organization 

McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. 

Established May 1, 2000 

Years of Business 23 

Type of Firm Private Corporation 

Company 
Mailing Address 

P.O. Box 865,       
Jamestown TN. 38556 

Website www.mcgrathconsulting.com

CEO/Authorized 
Representative 

Dr. Tim McGrath 

Email Address tim@mcgrathconsulting.com 

Office Phone (815) 728-9111

Fax Number (815) 331-0215

Insurances 

State Farm: Auto  
Erie: General Liability 
AmTrust: Worker’s Compensation  
Mt. Vernon: Professional Liability 
Chubb: Cyber Security Liability  

http://www.mcgrathconsulting.com/
mailto:tim@mcgrathconsulting.com


HASTINGS MI 5 

are exacerbated in rural areas, which have larger geographic coverage areas, exasperated with recruiting 
and retaining EMS providers. These ongoing workforce shortages have driven agencies to make changes 
in deployment, crew configurations, and call response reprioritization to maximize workforce resource- 
but potentially led to reductions in services to respond to the most pressing needs. 

The objective of the McGrath Consulting Group, Inc., team will be to address workforce challenges, 
climbing expenses, stagnant revenues, EMS delivery changes, and identify sustainable funding models. 

Project Consulting Team Members 

Project Manager / CEO 
Dr. Tim McGrath – Project Manager 

As CEO of McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. Dr. Tim McGrath is the visionary of the organization.  His 33 
years of experience in Fire and EMS as well as his ability to develop innovative solutions makes McGrath 
Consulting different than other firms.  Dr. McGrath started his career as a volunteer firefighter and went 
through the transition of an informal group of civic minded individuals to an integral department within 
the Village of Gurnee, IL.  During his tenure with Gurnee, the Village rapidly grew from a small bedroom 
community to one that hosts a Six Flag Great America, and at the time, the world’s largest shopping center 
– 2.2 million square feet under one roof.  Dr. McGrath was in administrative positions during both of the
ventures, so he understands the opportunities and challenges growth brings to the fire service.

Dr. McGrath was part of the first paramedic pilot program in the State of Illinois.  Through his leadership, 
he brought in the first non-education-based paramedic training program in the City of Brookfield fire 

CEO McGrath Ph.D.

Project Manager

Chief Edmond

Project Team Leader

Chief Lloyd

EMS/Parmedic

Staff Consultant

Fire/EMS

Mr. Harrison

Fiscal/Admin

Ms. Halvorson-Maes

Personnel Management



HASTINGS MI 6 

department.  Thus, the City of Brookfield Fire Department became a profit center training all paramedic 
personnel for Waukesha County, WI. 

Dr. McGrath’s passion is in consolidation of services.  This can entail a wide range of relationships from 
simply sharing resources to full consolidation and integration of services.  Thus, conducting an analysis of 
each department, Dr. McGrath is able to identify the areas for greater cooperative efforts that continue to 
provide quality services in a cost-efficient manner. 

Through his experience and innovative mind set, Dr. McGrath is able to identify and address key issues – 
current and future.  It is through this combination of education and work experience, as well as working 
with over 170 organizations in 39 states, he brings a vast amount of first-hand knowledge to the 
assessment of emergency services.   

Education Background 
Walden University 

Doctorate – Administrative Management 
Dissertation:  Attitudes on Consolidation in the Fire Service 

Webster University 
Master of Arts – Public Administration & Management 

University of Wisconsin – Stout 
Bachelor of Science – Industrial Education 

College of Lake County 
Associate Degree – Fire Science Technology 

Emergency Medical Services Consultant 
Chief Kevin Edmond – Consulting Team Leader 

Chief Edmond has 38 years of experience in fire and EMS services. He has worked as a paramedic and 
currently serves as the Fire Chief of Sterling Heights Fire Department, a suburb of Detroit. This fire 
department serves the fourth largest city in Michigan, with a population of approximately 134,400. This 
department provides fire and EMS services to cover 36.7 square miles. Sterling Heights is classified as an 
ISO class two fire department and is recognized as a leading organization in Southeast Michigan. 

Prior to becoming the Fire Chief in Sterling Heights, Chief Edmond was the Fire Chief for the City of 
Collinsville, Illinois, which is about 12 miles from St. Louis, Missouri, starting in January 2017. He previously 
spent 26 years as a member of the Mentor, Ohio, fire department near Cleveland. 

During his leadership at the Collinsville Fire Department, Chief Edmond played a key role in negotiating a 
contract between the IAFF union and city administration to enhance the reliability of their service delivery 
model. This new model improved the safety of firefighter personnel and strengthened their capacity to 
respond to multiple calls for service from the residents of Collinsville. Additionally, Chief Edmond 
spearheaded the development of the first Master Fire Protection Plan in the department's history, which 
has increased efficiency in dispatching and repositioning fire stations for better community service. 

Chief Edmond's commitment to planning and improvement has led to the creation of the City of Sterling 
Heights' first Fire Department Strategic Plan. This plan focuses on four main initiatives: communication, 
staffing, resource deployment, and apparatus and equipment. Each initiative comprises specific goals and 



HASTINGS MI 7 

objectives. Following these goals and objectives resulted in establishing a second Assistant Chief position 
to enhance departmental administration efficiency. The plan also includes a community risk assessment. 
It outlines a standard of cover that emphasizes the need for a community risk reduction officer, mobile 
integrated health roles, and peak ambulance staffing. Chief Edmond and his staff are implementing 
medical priority dispatch and peak ambulance staffing. The community risk reduction programs, mobile 
integrated health initiatives, and case worker collaborations are designed to ensure a safer community 
and provide care for at-risk residents. The strategic plan's creation and the implementation of its goals and 
objectives are geared toward making the department more effective, efficient, and sustainable. 

Chief Edmond most recently lead the teams who worked with state legislators and others to advocate for 
the State of Michigan to increase public emergency medical funding through an ambulance supplement 
payment program call Ground Medical Emergency Transport (GEMT). The bill was recently signed by the 
Governor at the end of January 2025 and is currently striving to work with the Michigan Department of 
Health and Human Services to implement this program for public EMS providers who transport Medicaid 
patients. 

Chief Edmond has over 20 years of experience in fire and emergency medical education, having served as 
the paramedic program director at Lakeland Community College. During his tenure, the college was 
selected to participate in a National Registry of Emergency Medical Technician focus group to develop best 
practices for EMS education programs. Chief Edmond also served as the chair of the Ohio Emergency 
Medical Service Education subcommittee, which contributed to the transition from Department of 
Transportation EMS Standards to the 2009 National EMS Education Standards. Under his leadership, 
Lakeland Community College was recognized as a Nationally Accredited Paramedic Program. 

His expertise includes strong leadership, budget management (he is currently overseeing a $25 million 
budget), developing capital improvement plans, securing FEMA, state, and local grants, negotiating IAFF 
contracts, and creating departmental master and strategic plans. 

Educational Background 
National Fire Academy 

Executive Fire Officer 
Purdue Global University 

Masters in Public Administration with Applied Research in Emergency Management 
University of Akron, OH 

Bachelor of Science – Fire Protection 
University of Akron, OH 

Associate of Science in Fire Protection 

Chief Robert Lloyd, OFC 
Chief Lloyd has 41 years of experience in fire and EMS services. He has worked in volunteer, combination, 
and career Fire/EMS departments. Currently, he is Fire Chief in Fairport Harbor, Ohio, a suburb thirty miles 
east of Cleveland. During his tenure he improved the Fairport Harbor Fire Department to an ISO Class 2 
department, consisting of career and part time members who provide fire, paramedic level transporting 
EMS, water rescue and community risk reduction efforts.  

During his career, Chief Lloyd has played a key role in negotiating contracts with the IAFF and city 
administration to enhance the reliability of their service delivery model. In Fairport Harbor, Chief Lloyd 



HASTINGS MI 8 

developed the employee handbook and updating Department Standard Operating Guidelines. Chief Lloyd, 
in conjunction with the Fairport Harbor School District instituted the “Handle with Care” Program that 
provides students that face Adverse Childhood Experiences a safety net to help them become resilient.  

Chief Lloyd has over 25 years of experience in fire and emergency medical education, having served as the 
assistant paramedic program director at Lakeland Community College. His commitment to delivering 
efficient EMS services led to the Eastlake Fire Department being an American Heart Association Mission 
Lifeline Bronze award winner, He also served on numerous EMS committees throughout his career to 
ensure quality patient care, including the development of the 12 lead EKG program that started the STEMI 
program in Lake County, OH. He currently serves on the Ohio Fire Chief’s EMS committee and was Vice 
President and President of the Lake County Fire Chief’s Association. Chief Lloyd was inducted in the Ohio 
Fire Service Hall of Fame. Chief Lloyd has been the recipient of both commendations and unit citations 
during his career.  

Educational Background 

• Certificate in Emergency Management, Lakeland Community College

• Credentialed Ohio Fire Chief certification, Ohio Fire Chief’s Association

• Paramedic: Ohio and Pennsylvania certifications

• Ohio Fire and EMS Instructor

• Ohio/IFSAC Fire Inspector

• Ohio/IFSAC Firefighter

• Peer Support Officer/IAFF

Staff Consultant 
If needed an additional fire/EMS professional might be added to the team depending on the opportunities 
identified during the study.  Before an additional consultant is added their name and qualifications will be 
provided to the client for review, no additional cost to project.    

Fiscal/Administration Consultant 
Mr. Harrison – Fiscal Analysis/Administration 

Mr. Harrison is a consultant with McGrath Consulting, which brings an Administrator/Fiscal perspective to 
our studies.  Mr. Harrison has over 20 years of experience in municipal management.  Mr. Harrison is 
currently the City Administrator of Issaquah, WA, which is a full-service City that has grown from 4,000 
population 15 years ago to 31,500 today.  He served as City Manager of Wyoming, Ohio for 12 years, which 
is a full service residential suburban city on the border of Cincinnati, Ohio.  In addition, he has served in 
City management positions with the City of Mosinee, WI and City of Wauwatosa, WI. 

Through the introduction of the Balanced Score Card evaluation, Mr. Harrison has effectively developed 
strategic plans that have resulted in economic growth to the community, as well as accountability within 
the organization.  He has received GFOA awards as well as the State Auditors Award for excellence in 
financial reporting.  He has implemented a successful LEAN initiative in the City of Issaquah directed at 
improving service and reducing costs. 

Education Background 
University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee 



HASTINGS MI 9 

Master of Arts – Public Administration 
Marquette University 

Bachelor of Arts 

Personnel Management/Human Resources 
Ms. Halvorson Maes – Human Resources Consultant 

Malayna Halvorson Maes has served as a human resource professional in both the private and public 
sectors for over 20 years. She worked previously in health care human resources, then as the Human 
Resources Director and senior advisor for a large county in northern Wisconsin. Thus, she has direct 
experience with the many challenges facing municipal employers.  

During her time in the County’s government, Ms. Maes advised the organization through the significant 
changes at the State. This included the most sweeping change which reduced the legal authority of 
organized labor in the public sector. This resulted in a reduction from five (5) collective bargaining units to 
one (1) unit in her County.   

As a change agent, she facilitated the development of significant policy changes for the organization.  This 
included conducting a complete evaluation of the compensation system for the county which resulted in 
a rewrite of all job descriptions and the implementation of a pay for performance evaluation system.  This 
system was created through the work of a combined employee – manager committee and included the 
implementation of a performance management software system to streamline the 360-evaluation 
process.  Thus, she brings a practical understanding to the development and implementation of pay-for-
performance compensation systems. 

As a former municipal Human Resources Director, she is knowledgeable of all facets of local government, 
including police, public works, engineering, health services, and more.  She has been active in a number 
of professional organizations including SHRM, Chippewa Valley Society of Human Resource Management; 
WIPFLE Senior HR Forum; Wisconsin Association of County Personnel Directors, and the National Public 
Employer Labor Relations Association.  In addition, she has served on the WACPD training Committee, 
Chair of the Legislative Affairs Committee, a member of the Board of Director, as well as a member of the 
Services Committee for WPELRA; thus, she takes an active role in defining the profession. 

Educational Background: 
Luther College, Iowa 

 Bachelor of Arts – Psychology 

Project Approach 
Methodology: The methodology utilized in this development of this study has been developed, tested, 
and validated in over 25 years of consulting for public safety organizations. McGrath Consulting Group’s 
methodology and approach are characterized by a systematic, logical series of tasks aimed at assuring 
thoroughness, consistency, and objectivity.   

Site Visits: Our consulting team anticipates one or two on-site visits in most cases encompassing two to 
three days. The number of in-person meetings will be determined as needed. The team might be several 
consultants depending on the objective to be analyzed.  



HASTINGS MI 10 

Over the 25 years of consulting our approach to site visits has changed most drastically during the 
pandemic but also as technology and consulting experience has unlocked new opportunities. Without 
question in-person site visits are essential, allowing the consulting team to learn about the culture of the 
organizations. Qualitative observation is used to understand how people experience the enacted culture.  

The lead consultant will begin the project by conferring with the client’s project team and other persons 
you designate. A list of information, data sets and documents needed will be requested prior to or on the 
first site visit.  Additional documents may be requested based on information gleaned during interviews.  

Project Timeline 
A project of this size and scope normally would be a minimum of six months from signing the contract. 
What we cannot control is when officials actually sign the contract. I can assure you that this project will 
be completed by December 1, 2025. 

Study Deliverables 
McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. will meet the Request for Proposal for detailed report documenting the 
existing EMS service delivery system, EMS agency profiles, EMS agency staffing, capabilities, financial 
position, and agency needs, and an overall assessment of EMS service delivery. The report will identify 
any service deficiencies or vulnerabilities, and strategies and actions that can be taken to ensure the EMS 
service quality, availability, and sustainability in the future. Such actions may include shared services, 
consolidation, hybrid structure, ambulance district creation, or other similar actions. 

Scope of Study Objectives 
The study will address the assessment of EMS throughout the BIRCH Rural Fire Association in the 
sections highlighted below: 

• Section One: Assessment of Current EMS Service Delivery

• Section Two: Overview and Analysis of EMS Operations

• Section Three: Strategies and Recommendations

The objectives below will apply to all participating agencies 

Section One: Assessment of Current EMS Service Delivery 
Objective – Develop Project Work Plan 

• Develop a project work plan based on the scope of work

• Conduct an initial meeting with the client’s project team

• Gain an understanding of the organization's background, goals, and expectations for the
project

• Establish working relationships, make logistical arrangements, determine communication
process, and finalize contract arrangements

• Identify work plan specifics



HASTINGS MI 11 

Objective – EMS General Overview 
• Meet with the EMS Medical Director

• Meet with each participating agency

• Gain an understanding of the history and culture of the EMS providers organizations

• Analyze the EMS providers organizational structure

• Review of the current EMS provider’s protocols

• Assess the current overall EMS provider’s operations for efficiency and effectiveness

• Ensure an understanding of the protection area and its associated EMS
opportunities/challenges

• Identify/analysis of the EMS provider’s record management system

• Identify key stakeholders and ensure their input

Objective – Current EMS Delivery System/Data 
• Assessment of the current service provider’s EMS operations and medical outcomes
• Review of current trends in emergency and non-emergency demands
• Data collection for the last three to five years to determine trends in:
• Emergency EMS responses

o Types of emergency incidents
o Response times system wide and for each agency
o Time of emergency alarms
o Day of the week of emergency
o Incidents by month
o Simultaneous call data
o Location of incident

• Evaluate the resource deployment of resources (vehicle & staff)

Objective – Staffing 
• Review and evaluation of operational staffing levels

• Review and evaluate administration, support staffing levels

• Review and evaluate the current level of EMS service and future expectations of service levels

• Assess staffing distribution

• Assess the Standard of Coverage: Distribution, Concentration and Reliability

• Evaluate the responsibilities and activity levels of personnel

Objective – Financial Overview 
• Analyze the provider’s fiscal condition
• Evaluation of the operational and capital budgets
• Review historical data (5-years) of the provider’s

o Revenue sources
▪ Funding
▪ Expenses
▪ Patient fees
▪ Taxation



HASTINGS MI 12 

▪ Other fiscal sources
• Capital improvement programs

• Receive data on collection rates/percentage of
• Investigate Payer Mix
• Identify funding methods for apparatus/vehicle replacement
• Identify potential revenue sources

Objective: Facilities and Equipment 
• Inspect the current provider’s facility and limitations: both support and emergency response

• Evaluate the provider’s facility location and response area – utilizing GIS mapping

• Illustrate travel time/distance utilizing GIS mapping from the current stations

• Determine if the existing facility is located in the most advantageous location

• Assess compliance of existing facilities to industry standards (ADA), code compliance, and
industry standards.

• Determine future viability of current facility and identify future facility needs

• Analyze the potential for consolidation

Objective: Provider’s Apparatus and Vehicles 
• Assess and evaluate the current condition and limitations of apparatus/vehicles

• Assessment of types of apparatus/ vehicles, age, and appropriateness for the provider

• including reduction of apparatus if needed

• Assess the distribution and deployment of apparatus

Objective: Provider’s Medical Equipment 
• Inventory and evaluate the current condition and limitations of medical equipment

Section Two: Overview and Analysis of EMS Operations 
Objective: EMS and Ambulance Transport Review 
• Assess the provider’s operations for efficiency, effectiveness, and deployment

• Analyze the provider’s organizational structure and design

• Assess Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) for
o Organization overview
o Emergency Medical Dispatching (EMD) review
o Certification of personnel
o Methods used for Quality assurance
o Evaluate call process times

• Analysis of patient care records
o Within restrictions of Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA)

• Review of providers data on emergent and non-emergent and how these correlates to 911
service delivery



HASTINGS MI 13 

Objective: Service Delivery and Performance Measures 
• Analyze service delivery and performance measures against industry standards and best

practices to identify any gaps

• Review quality assurance programs

• Meet with Project Medical Director

• Review EMS protocols

Objective: EMS Service Demands 
• Providing provider’s & PSAP data is available, the team has access to Environmental Systems

Research, Inc. (ESRI) mapping of incidents

• Offer projections for call growth rate

• Analyze future service demands based on stakeholders input

• Review of Public Safety Education programs

Objective: EMS Resource Distribution 
• Identified in previous objectives GIS will illustrate time travel coverage for each provider

which will show service gaps and redundancy

Objective: EMS Reliability 
• Concentration, Distribution, and Reliability are the basic components of Standard of Coverage

and will be addressed in the study

• Analysis of simultaneous/back-to-back incidents for each provider

• Overall assessment of EMS reliability effectiveness

• Evaluate call concurrence for effects on system

• Evaluate Unit Hour Utilization and perform unit drawdown analysis

 Objective: Response Performance Analysis 
• Analyze all components of Response Time

o Detection Time: The time it takes to detect the emergency incident and dial 9-1-1.
Not controlled by PSAP or EMS

o Notification Time (Call Processing Time): The time from when the call is received by
dispatch to when the department is notified. This time is completely controlled by
the PSAP

o Turnout Time: The time it takes personnel to prepare and leave quarters after
notification.

o Travel Time: The time the first fire apparatus leaves the station to the time it reports
on the scene.

o Mitigation Time: The time the first vehicle arrives at the scene to when actual
treatment efforts begin.

• Gather hospital transport times
o From scene to hospital
o Ambulance turnaround time at hospital
o Assess ALS and BLS patient assessment (if HIPPA allows)
o Gather patient outcomes if hospital releases (HIPPA)



HASTINGS MI 14 

Section Three: Strategies & Recommendations 

The goal of the client is to receive a non-bias professional consultant’s study to assess/analyze the 
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) and recommend the future delivery service of EMS. The study will 
address current operation effectiveness and capabilities of the current providers, shared 
services/consolidation, governance structure, sustainability, data analysis, and other opportunities. The 
RFP lists one-page items that should be included; rather, than list the items the consulting team will use 
this list as a check list to ensure the topic has been addressed in the report 

Objective: Current Operations, Recommendations, Strategies 
The operational assessment will delve into various facets of EMS operations, such as capabilities, 
strengths, weaknesses, and coverage gaps. By evaluating the current workforce and identifying any 
staffing shortages, the assessment will provide insight into how the agencies are performing in terms of 
their ability to meet community needs. Special attention will be given to the call volume and response 
times, as these are critical indicators of the effectiveness and timeliness of EMS service delivery. This 
data will guide the development of recommendations aimed at addressing challenges, ensuring that 
EMS services are responsive and sustainable in the long term. 

Objective: Service Costs Assessment Recommendations 
Financial sustainability is a major consideration every EMS agency across the country. To support the 
financial health of EMS within Latah County, potential funding strategies will be explored. These 
strategies may include modifications to existing transport fees, cost-sharing agreements between 
agencies, and the identification of new revenue sources. By diversifying funding streams, EMS agencies 
can create a more sustainable financial model that supports growth and adapts to changing demands. 
Such strategies will help ensure that EMS services in Latah County remain viable and capable of 
providing the necessary care to the community for years to come. By preparing for future challenges, the 
EMS system can maintain its capacity to respond to emergencies efficiently and effectively 

• Refer to Section One “Financial Overview”

• Develop a fiscal forecast for EMS delivery

• Estimated cost projections for 5-10-year forecast – depending on EMS structure

• Identify cost savings methods

Objective: Other Considerations& Recommendations 
During the exchange with stakeholders any method of future EMS service delivery which will 
meet the clients needs and within cost will be identified. 

Objective: Planning and Implementation of Recommendations 
One of the key aspects of the recommendations will focus on improving the overall service delivery 
model. As call volumes continue to rise and the demand for services grows, ensuring timely and efficient 
responses will become increasingly important. The recommendations will address issues such as 
response time and the optimization of resources. By focusing on improving workforce allocation and 
coverage, these recommendations aim to reduce delays and ensure that EMS services can effectively 
meet the needs of the community, even during periods of high demand. 



HASTINGS MI 15 

Understanding the current state of each agency will allow stakeholders to make informed decisions 
about the future of EMS in the region. It will also highlight opportunities to streamline services, reduce 
redundancies, and enhance coordination across agencies 

• All recommendations of federal and Michigan regulatory requirements will meet these
governance mandates

• An implementation outline will be included in study

Study Costs 
The total cost for the items/objectives outlined in the proposal is $30,540.00 which includes professional 
staff time, transportation and expenses, PDF draft reports for review, and presentation of the final 
report.  The study cost is guaranteed not to exceed the above quoted figure. 

The client will be invoiced in three (4) payments: 
15% ($4,581.00) – upon signing of the contract 
20% ($6,108.00) – at the first site visit 
55% ($16,797.00) – upon submission of the draft report 
10% ($) – submission of the final report and presentation if desired 

The proposal price is good for 60 days from submittal.  Payment is due within 30 days of receipt of the 
invoice.  

References 
Jefferson Parish, Louisiana 
West Bank Fire Service Consolidation Analysis 
Project Manager: Sandy Pearce – Executive Assistant (Director has retired) 
Phone/Email: (504) 736-6202 / spearce@jeffparish.net 
Scope of Work: Conduct a review and analysis to determine the feasibility and advisability of 
consolidating the eleven (11) independent volunteer fire companies responding from twenty-eight (28) 
fire stations into a single Parish owned and operated fire department.   

City of Dodge City, Kansas 
Contact: Ms. Cherise Tieben –City Manager (Ret) – cell: (620) 253-2614 Email: cheris.tieben@gmail.com 
Project: (multiple projects) Greater cooperative partnership between City and County. Special emphasis 
placed on EMS delivery system. 

City of Silvis, Illinois 
Operational Audit 
Project Manager: Chief John Winters 
Phone/Email: (309) 429-9633   
Scope of Work: Assessment of operations and services with focused attention on long-range planning 
for EMS services.  Analysis of EMS operations and recommendations for changes based on the current 
private ambulance service delivery model. 

mailto:cheris.tieben@gmail.com


HASTINGS MI 16 

Draft Report 
At the conclusion of the study an electronic version of the draft written report for technical review by 
the City of Hastings and other stake holders identified during the initial project kick off meeting. 

Final Report 
A final report shall be issued to the participating agencies in an electronic (PDF) format. 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Set Hearing of Necessity for Parking Lot Special Assessment District 

Meeting Date: April 14, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to set a public hearing on April 28, 2025 to determine the necessity of a special 

assessment district for downtown parking areas.  

Background Information:  

In the past, a Special Assessment District was created to help cover the cost of some parking lot 

maintenance in the downtown area, primarily for snow removal. The cost of the assessment has been 

based on a formula. This assessment is placed on the summer tax bill.  

Financial Implications:  

The SAD offsets costs associated with parking lot maintenance downtown. The General Fund would 

need to cover this cost entirely if the district is not created or the assessment is not approved.  

Attachments: 

None. 

10Q



12



 
 

 

Fire Department Council Report March 2025 

The department responded to 89 calls for service: 27 in the city, 57 in the townships and 5 mutual aids.  Our 

members spent a total of 502 hours responding to calls for service. Total calls for service YTD 238.  We have issued 

103 burn permits in the townships YTD.   

Training  

Our members trained a total of 36 hours for the month of March.  We spent the first meeting of the month 

focused on ground ladders use and safety.  Our second meeting we hosted a bulk propane safety class for the 

county. We continue to provide extra training for the newer members including driver training and pump 

operations.   

Smoke/ CO detector installations 

We are continuing to push smoke and CO detectors; YTD 93 detectors installed in 28 homes throughout the 

district.  

Department activities  

Our call volume continues to grow with an emphasis on medical calls, especially in the evening.  Mercy has staffed a 

second truck during the evening hours over the last few weeks. This has helped somewhat with medical calls, but 

our volume continues to rise. We are continuing to focus on code compliance on the fire safety side of businesses 

and larger residential facilities.  We saw two larger storms this month which helped drive up the calls with many 

lines and trees down that needed protected until they were removed by the power company. We are working on a 

cost recovery plan with Consumers to cover our time spent on down lines.  

Chief’s Comments 

This month has seen many changes and projects coming to an end.  The LEO Grant for the 3 sets of turnout gear is 

complete, with the gear arriving and placed in service.  The Wildland gear is on order and expected to arrive in late 

April.  We continue to visit businesses for fire code compliance and ensure safe practices for residents and staff of 

the businesses.  Our Automatic Mutual Aid (AMA) is now operational with dispatch, meaning we have another 

department responding to all structure fires in the district.  

Respectfully, 

Chief Mark Jordan 

12A



  

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



  

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 



Board/City/Township 1 
Library Director’s Report - March 31, 2025 Board Meeting 

Library Director’s Report 
March 31, 2025 Board Meeting 

Overview 
Perhaps the biggest news for March was President Trump’s signing of an Executive order on March 
14 that effectively disables and lays the groundwork to eliminate the Institute for Museum and 
Library Services (IMLS). There are no immediate impacts to us, but long-term could see the loss 
of the Michigan Electronic Library (MeL) and interlibrary loan system MelCat. As I learn more, I will 
keep the Board and public updated. 

After the monthly Lakeland Board and Advisory Council meetings on March 13, I was part of a 
panel discussion on managing challenging patrons, dealing with vandalism, and police situations. 
Turnout was good and I had a few takeaways from my fellow panelists from the Henika District 
Library, Muskegon Area District Library, and the Grand Rapids Public Library. I will likely be 
suggesting some further tweaks to our patron Code of Conduct. 

I also met with Bonnie Gettys this month at the Barry Community 
Foundation. We had a good discussion around the library funds held 
there, especially HPL’s endowment, and I will bring thoughts to the 
Board. 

Lastly, we had some unplanned spend on technology this month. A 
second self-check all-in-one computer had a hard drive crash, so a 
new unit has been purchased and is now in use. And after 18 years of 
continuous operation (there is no power switch), the digital zone 
processor in the A/V rack in the Community Room died. A new one, 
which unfortunately cost $799.00, has been purchased and installed.  

Staffing 
We welcomed new team member Hannah Klein in March, photo at 
right. She has completed her initial training and begun working desk 
shifts. Please welcome her when you see her on your next visit.  

Reg asked for two more weeks before coming back 5 days per week to clean, so Key Cleaning 
continued cleaning the building through Friday, March 28. 

Collection Updates 
Library of Things: We have weeded a few items that rarely, if ever, check out. At the same time, 
we are adding new items which are currently being processed. See Tess Allerding’s report for more 
details, but look for the new items to hit the shelves later in April, along with redesigned displays. 

New Books and Movies: In January we finally received a much-needed supply of item barcodes 
which finally enabled us to work through a backlog of new material. Between January 1 and March 

12B



 

 
Board/City/Township  2 
Library Director’s Report - March 31, 2025 Board Meeting 

24, 439 new items have been processed. Thank you to Marty, the Processing Supervisor, Tammy 
who helps cover new books, and volunteer Marji who also covers and performs quality checks. 

Digital Catalog: We are part of the Midwest Collaborative for Library Services (MCLS) for 
OverDrive, our eBook, audiobook and magazine platform. The consortium is losing a member, but 
voted in March to increase digital spend by 5% for the upcoming fiscal year. We see over 2,000 
digital checkouts every month by our patrons across all 13 available consortia catalogs. 

Project Updates 
Strategic Planning: Community partners met with our strategic planning facilitator, Carol Dawe, 
on Wednesday March 19. Their feedback, combined with board and staff feedback, will inform 
creation of the community survey. We will begin crafting that in April with the intention of bringing 
a draft to the Board at the May meeting. 

Budgeting: Once approved by the Board at the March 31 meeting, I will submit a final budget to 
the city. 

Storybook Walk: We are finalizing plans and securing the last of the funding for the planned 
Storybook Walk along the Thornapple River. The City will be installing the fixtures for us with a 
target completion date by the end of May. This will be the culmination of plans to honor a long-time 
library supporter, Jane Arnold, in whose memory the library received significant donations in 2024. 

Staff Reports 
Assistant Director Tess Allerding’s Report 
In March we did some shopping to add some new Library of 
Things items to our collection, both in the general Library of Things 
collection, and in Library of Things Jr. Some of our new additions 
include a pickleball set, a vehicle diagnostic code scanner, a 3D 
pen kit, a Scanmarker translator and reading pen for individuals 
with dyslexia and other reading comprehension challenges, and a 
Little Tikes Story Dream Machine (see photos). We will get these 

items out for circulation over the 
next month or so, especially as the 
weather warms up and people 
become more 
active. 



 

 
Board/City/Township  3 
Library Director’s Report - March 31, 2025 Board Meeting 

   

 We have talked about 
revamping thy displays for Library of 
Things for quite a while as we wanted 
something that showed what items we 
have in the collection at all times, even 
when they are checked out. With our 
current DVD case system, when an 
item is checked out, the DVD case 
displaying the item is removed from 

the shelves and put behind the Info desk. It does not make it easy for 
patrons to see what we have available, and therefore place holds on 
items that may be checked out. Our new solution is to have a clear 
acrylic picture frame with a photo and description of the item that will stay out on the shelves, even 
when the item is checked out. There will be a clear pocket attached to the front of the frame holding 
a laminated card that patrons can bring to the desk to check the item out. We are hoping that this 
new method of displaying what is available through Library of Things will boost circulation and 
interest in the collection. 

 I attended a collection diversity audit webinar on March 12, and it contained some valuable 
information. I have been interested in doing a diversity audit on our collection for quite some time, 
but have never known how to go about it. The goal of a diversity audit is to discover how well the 
community is represented in the collection, as well as to expose readers to diverse people and 
voices that they may not have otherwise encountered. The webinar explained how two different 
libraries conducted their diversity audits using either Google forms or Excel. It also provided 
resources for discovering the demographics of the community. I plan to start working on this later 
in 2025. 

Youth Librarian Erin Quada’s Report 
March is Reading Month 

• March is Reading Month is nearing its end at the time of this writing and we had over 100 
youth participate with about 80% actively reading and tracking!  

• The theme this year was “Get Lost in a Book” so the paper reading log had two mazes on 

it and prizes included things like toy maze balls and finger flashlights.   
• As usual, all people that completed the reading challenge- logging 600 minutes of reading 

throughout the month- also received a book of their choice among their other prizes.   
• I am very appreciative to The South Jefferson General Store for offering a $2 coupon to 

everyone who completed the challenge. 

Paws for Reading 

• This program is continuing to grow and was booked solid on Saturday, March 22.   
• Most people that come and read once sign up again! 



 

 
Board/City/Township  4 
Library Director’s Report - March 31, 2025 Board Meeting 

• Michal Enders and her therapy dog, Jace, 
volunteer their time for this program and I am 
very grateful! They are pictured here with one of 
our readers. 

 

 

Poetry Contest 

• In honor of World Poetry Day (March 21) and National Poetry Month (April), we are hosting 
our first poetry contest! Anyone in 6th grade or older can participate and winner will be 
chosen in three categories: middle school, high school, and adult. 

• The contest opened on March 21 and entries are submitted online through April 11. Voting 
is open to the public online and in the Library from April 14-April 27.  Winners will be 
announced on April 29. 

STEAM at the Library 

• We had a great time at our engineering workshop on March 24 and the kids didn’t want to 

stop! 
• Sara Syswerda from Pierce Cedar Creek Institute (PCCI) joined us to explain the 

engineering process before we put it to the test with aluminum foil boats and spaghetti and 
marshmallow towers! 

   

Outreach 

• March is a busy time for outreach with the schools going full tilt with March is Reading Month 
as well as reading emphasis at Community Action Head Start. 

• I visited all of the Head Start and Great Start Readiness Program classes this month for 
Reading is Fundamental (RIF). I read a story, Abracadabra, It’s Spring!, provided a craft, 
and gave books to each child to take home for their home library. My volunteers and funding 
from Friends of the Library for the purchase of books make this program possible. 



 

 
Board/City/Township  5 
Library Director’s Report - March 31, 2025 Board Meeting 

• I participated in Family Reading Nights at local elementary schools with Great Start 
Collaborative, MSU Extension, and PCCI.  

• This photo is after the event at Northeastern with our community partners. Pictured from 
the left are me, Sara Syswerda from PCCI, Geneva Knapp and LeeAnn Miller-Busson from 
Great Start Collaborative. 

 

         

Marketing and Programming Coordinator Barbara Haywood’s Report 
Here is a recap of some recent programs: 

• Winter Reading Program: With 50 people signed up, 36 active readers logged a total of 

1,032 days, promoting daily reading for 15 minutes, either through a paper log or 

Beanstack. 

• Earth Day Tree Planting: 109 kids signed up to plant free trees for Earth Day 2025 in 

partnership with Neighborhood Forest and Barry County Earth Alliance. Trees will be 

available for pick-up at the Barry County Business & Community Expo on April 20. 

• Grandma’s Braid Breadmaking Class: 13 people attended and learned how to make a 

unique Easter Braid bread. The class emphasized the double-braid method for a special 

look and texture. 

• Beginning Gardening Classes: 10 attendees participated in two sessions led by Master 

Gardener Garry Cruse, focused on basic gardening. This ties into the upcoming “Why 

Homestead” series and a Foraging Walk in partnership with PCCI at the Hastings Food 

Forest. 



 

 
Board/City/Township  6 
Library Director’s Report - March 31, 2025 Board Meeting 

• Lift Every Voice Book Discussion: The group discussed Warrior Girl Unearthed by 

Angeline Boulley, with a record 17 attendees. This event was held in partnership with the 

Round Table Companions for Racial Equity – Barry County and their Lift Every Voice 

group. 

• Vet Science Program: 15 youth attended a Vet Tech certificate program in partnership 

with the Barry County K-9 4-H Klub, learning about the path to earning Vet Tech 

accreditation before finishing high school. 

Circulation Supervisor Chloe Lewis’ Report 
The Hiring process for the Library Assistant position has concluded, and we are pleased to say that 
the position has been offered and accepted by Hannah Klein. She began Wednesday, March 19th 
and has been an efficient learner. We are all excited to have her join our team and look forward to 
the contributions she will make in the days ahead. 

On February 26th, I attended my first Circulation Committee Meeting. A wide range of topics were 
discussed and new ideas were introduced, including the possibility of offering patron payment plans 
especially for damaged items, which some libraries have already implemented. I would like to 
explore what that process might look like and how we could approach it. 

The Cooperative as a whole has begun an inventory process for all libraries, with a completion goal 
of March 2026. Tess and I have started discussions on how to approach this and we will begin 
formal planning in the coming weeks. 

In addition, I have begun shifting sections of the Nonfiction collection in order to improve 
accessibility and fill in gaps as much as possible. One key change was separating the beginning of 
the general nonfiction from the biographies. This will help streamline the browsing experience for 
our patrons and ensure a more logical flow of materials 

Upcoming Programs and Events 
• Poetry Contest March & April! 
• Wednesday, April 2 6pm: Digital Literacy – The Michigan Electronic Library (MeL) 
• Thursday, April 3 1pm: Spring Break Movie 
• Saturday, April 5 10am: Breadmaking, Garlic Twist 
• Saturday, April 5, 2pm: Friends of the Library Ladies’ Tea at the Green Street Church 
• Monday, April 7 6:30pm: Poetry from the Shadows (live author reading) 
• Tuesday, April 8 10am: LEGO Day 
• Tuesday, April 8 1pm: Teen Movie 
• Tuesday, April 8 6:30pm: Lift Every Voice Book Club 
• Wednesday, April 9: Board Game Day (Kids @ 10am, Teen @ 2pm) 
• Tuesday, April 15 6pm: Why Homestead? 
• Monday, April 21 6pm: Earth Day Movie 
• Thursday, April 24 – Friday, April 25: Jazz Fest 



March 19, 2025 

YMCA Updates for the City of Hastings 

Facility Updates: 

● Capital Campaign and new building update

o On target with capital campaign

o Construction is ongoing and great progress is being made at the new facility

o Timeline for final construction items provided

▪ Drywall, 1st coat of paint, ceiling, flooring: March + April

▪ Septic, driveway, final inspections, signs: May + June

▪ Occupancy: June for staff, August for programs

● 

Program Updates 

● Camp Registration: 441; 61 first-time campers

o Day Camps: Week 1, 4, 6, 7, 8 are full; week 2 has one spot available; week

5 is full in the 6-8 age group

o Overnight Camps: 65.3% filled; majority of openings are for 3rd & 4th grade

students

● Trends:

o 5th-7th grade camps are on the rise for registrations

● Hiring Updates:

o 10 Counselors

o 4 program team

o 2 male counselors in progress

o 4 Rotating Counselors

o 8 International Staff members (GB, Mexico, Hungary, Australia, NZ,

Columbia)

Respectfully submitted, 

Jon Sporer, CEO 

Nichole Lyke, YMCA Board Secretary 

13A



Hastings Public Library Board of Trustees 
Minutes 

Date: March 31, 2025 - 4:30PM 
Location: Hastings Public Library, 227 E. State St., Hastings, Ml 49058 

Community Room 

1. CALL TO ORDER
The Meeting was called to order by Kelli Newberry at 4:30 p.m.
• Board members present: Jane Cybulski, Kelli Newberry, Sam Cale, Amanda

Mattson, and Carol Dwyer, Ann Devroy, Ellyn Main, Cloe Oliver, and
observing member Brooklyn Strickland. Not present was Rebecca Lectka.

• Also present was David Edelman and Tess Allerding.

2. AGENDA: Approved.

3. MINUTES: Ann Devroy motioned to approve the March 3, 2025,
minutes, seconded by Cloe Oliver. Motion approved.

4. CORRESPONDENCE: Reviewed letters received from residents.

5. FINANCIALS
a. February invoices and Budget Report:  Jane Cybulski motioned to approve

the financials, seconded by Carol Dwyer. Motion approved.

6. LIBRARY DIRECTOR REPORTS
a. March 2025
b. February 2025 Infographic

7. COMMITTEES
a. Budget and Finance –
b. Building and Grounds –Scheduled a walk thru on April 19th 10:00 a.m.
c. Personnel -
d. Policy-Schedule a meeting on April 28th 4:30 p.m.
e. Marketing-Reviewing for membership

8. NEW BUSINESS:
• Ann Devroy motioned to consider approving the Fiscal Year 2025-2026

budget as presented and pending final payroll and insurance amounts from
the City. Seconded by Sam Cale. Motion approved by roll call: Sam Cale-Y,
Cloe Oliver-Y, Ann Devroy-Y, Carol Dwyer-Y, Ellyn Main-Y, Amanda Mattson-
Y,

• Discuss changes from 2024-2025
• Discuss signage project for building

• Gilson Quote
• Fast Signs Quote
• High School

• Cloe Oliver motioned to consider naming the Storybook Walk in honor of Jane
Arnold, seconded by Ann Devroy. Motion passed.

13B



 

 

• Discussion of IMLS and possible affects of government funding changes 
• Strategic Planning Update-survey will be assembled this month for board 

review in May. 
• Endowment Fund Learnings 
• Online Safety Workshop 
• Michigan Library Association Membership for Trustees is available 
 

 
9.  NEXT MEETING DATE 

• Next board meeting on Monday, May 5, 2025, at 4:30 p.m. 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT: Meeting was adjourned at 5:28 p.m.  

 
 


	0_Exec Summary 2025 04 14.pdf
	4_Agenda 2025 04 14.pdf
	5_Minutes 2025 03 24.pdf
	8.A_Child Abuse Prevention Month April 2025.pdf
	9.A_Budget Workshop Memo.pdf
	9.B_Invoice Summary Sheet.pdf
	10.A_Security Doors.pdf
	10.A.pdf
	10.A1_Discount Lock and Door Quote.pdf

	10.B_Replacement Bulbs.pdf
	10.B.pdf
	10.B1_74087 Trojan technologies.pdf

	10.C_Fuel Island System.pdf
	10.C.pdf
	10.C1_Xerox Scan_03312025100716.pdf

	10.D_Flow Meters.pdf
	10.D.pdf
	10.D1_ICI QuoteDoc_WellFM_Upgrade ICI.pdf
	10.D2_Hastings Well House Flow Meters 03-27-25 REVISED.pdf
	Sheet1


	10.E_Root Control.pdf
	10.F_Heater Pump Skid.pdf
	10.F.pdf
	10.F1_74086 Detroit Pump.pdf
	10.F2_2024 CHEMICAL FEED IMPROVEMENTS CITY OF HASTINGS - revised P1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	P1 - CHEMICAL FEED DETAILS (2)



	10.G_Woodlawn Asphalt Patching.pdf
	Binder6.pdf
	10.G_Woodlawn Asphalt Patching.pdf
	10.G2_Murrays Asphalt.pdf
	10.G3_Frickie Asphalt.pdf
	SKM_C3350i25041015020.pdf

	SKM_C3350i25041015090.pdf

	10.H_Ford F250 and Upfit.pdf
	10.I_Block Parties.pdf
	10.I_Block Parties.pdf
	SKM_C3350i25041015160.pdf
	10.I2_Special Event Application - 2025.pdf
	Rock The Block Party - 2025 Sp. Ev. App
	Street Dance 2025a
	Street Dance 2025b
	Street Dance 2025c


	10.J_Resolution 2025-10.pdf
	10.J_Resolution 2025-10.pdf
	10.J1.pdf

	10.K_Resolution 2025-11.pdf
	10.K_Resolution 2025-11.pdf
	10.K1_Resolution 2025-11 street administrator.pdf

	10.L_MERS Hybrid Plan.pdf
	10.L_MERS Hybrid Plan.pdf
	10.L1_0801- Revised Hybrid Adoption Agreement.pdf

	10.M_Very Barry Event.pdf
	10.M_Very Barry Event.pdf
	10.M1_Request Letter and Special Event Application.pdf

	10.N_Council Public Hearing 05.12.pdf
	10.N_Memo- Council Public Hearing 05.12.pdf
	10.N1.pdf

	10.O_Mercy Ambulance Contract.pdf
	10.O_Mercy Ambulance Contract.pdf
	10.O1_Mercy Request.pdf
	10.O2_cost comps.pdf
	10.O3_Mercy Ambulance Service Revenue and Cost Report with Forecasting.pdf
	Introduction
	Historical Revenue and Cost Analysis
	Revenue Sources
	Operating Costs
	Historical Financial Performance


	10.O4_Hastings Ambulance Contract_expires 01_01_2027.pdf

	10.P_McGrath Consulting.pdf
	10.P_McGrath Consulting.pdf
	10.P1_Proposal EMS Hasting MI.pdf

	10.Q_SAD Hearing Schedule.pdf
	12_Rutland Twp letter Meijer.pdf
	12.A_Fire Dept Report.pdf
	12.B_Director's report 03-31-2025.pdf
	13.A_City of Hastings Update  03 19 25  FD.pdf
	13.B_Library Board Minutes DRAFT 03 31 2025.pdf

	Clear Form button: 
	FillText3: 
	2012: 

	FillText8: 
	2012: Rob Neil

	FillText9: 
	2012: Streets and Construction Superintendent

	FillText10: 
	2012: Hastings

	FillText11: 
	2012: 

	FillText23: 
	2012: 

	FillText24: 
	2012: 

	FillText12: 
	2012: 

	FillText13: 
	2012: 

	FillText25: 
	2012: 

	FillText14: 
	2012: lperin@hastingsmi.gov

	FillText15: 
	2012: 04/14/25

	FillText16: 
	2012: rneil@hastingsmi.gov

	FillText17: 04/14/25
	FillText18: 
	2012: 201 E State St

	FillText19: 
	2012: 

	FillText21: 
	2012: Hastings

	FillText20: 
	2012: 49058

	FillText22: 
	2012: 2699452468

	EmployerName: City of Hastings
	MuniNumber: 0801
	InitialMonth: 
	InitialYear: 
	FiscalStart: 
	FiscalEnd: 
	VestingCredit: Off
	Division: 
	EffectiveDate: Off
	EffectiveMonth: 
	EffectiveYear: 
	HybridDivision 2: 
	CurrentActive: Off
	DBdivision 2: 
	Deadline_Month 2: 
	Deadline_Day 2: 
	Deadline_Year 2: 
	InitialOption: Off
	SeparatingDivision: 
	SeparatingEffectiveMonth: 
	SeparatingEffectiveYear: 
	DivisionToMerge: HC
	DivisionMerged: HB
	MergedMonth: May
	MergedYear: 25
	ClosedDBdivision: 
	ClosedHyDivision: 
	ExistingDCdivision: 
	DCeffectiveDate: 
	EligibleEmployees-02: Full-Time Clerical Staff, Department Heads, Full-Time Fire
	DivisionTitle 3: [HB]- General hired after 7/1/08 & FT Fire hired after 7/1/07
	PublicSafety: Off
	ProbationComments-02: 
	ProbationaryMonths-02: 
	ProbationaryPeriod-01: Off
	HoursPerMonth-02: 80
	TempMonths-04: 
	TempEmployees-01: Off
	PartTime-01: Off
	SeasonalEmployees-01: Off
	ElectedOfficials-01: Off
	AppointedOfficials-01: Off
	ContractEmployees-01: Off
	PartTimeFewerThan-04: 40 hrs
	PartTimePer-04: week
	SeasonalIncrement-03: 
	SeasonalIncrement-05: 
	Other1-01: Off
	OtherShiftPerdiem-01: Off
	AltFormula: 
	OtherTypeOfLeave-03: 
	OtherTypeOfLeave2-03: 
	ShortTermDisability-01: Off
	WorkersComp-01: Off
	FMLA-01: Off
	OtherLeave-01: Off
	OtherLeave2-01: Off
	LongTermDisability-01: Off
	CompensationDefinition-01: Off
	DB-DCcapPercent: 
	DCcapPercent: 
	ValuationDate: N/A
	ValuationYear: 
	BenefitMultiplier : Off
	NormalRetirementAge: 60
	25yrsService: N/A
	EmployerCaps: Off
	VestingMethod: Off
	Hours: 
	Vesting: Off
	NormalRetirementAgeDC: 60
	ContributionsRemitted: Off
	Loans: Off
	CliffVestingYears: 5
	PercentVested2: 
	PercentVested6: 
	YearsOfService2: 
	PercentVested3: 
	PercentVested7: 
	YearsOfService3: 
	PercentVested4: 
	PercentVested8: 
	YearsOfService4: 
	PercentVested5: 
	PercentVested9: 
	YearsOfService5: 
	PercentAfter7: 
	PercentAfter10: 
	YearsOfService6: 
	PercentAfter8: 
	PercentAfter11: 
	YearsOfService7: 
	PercentAfter9: 
	PercentAfter12: 
	YearsOfService8: 
	ApprovingEmployer-02: City of Hastings
	BoardMeetingDate-02: 04/14/2025
	SignorName-03: Sarah Moyer-Cale
	SignorTitle-02: City Manager
	SignorDate-03: 04/14/2025
	MERSDateSigned: 
	MERSSignedMERS: 


